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Independent Auditor's report on the financial statements for the Shareholder,
Board of Directors, Supervisory Board and Audit Committee of company
Slovenska elektrizacna prenosova siistava, a.s.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Slovenska elektrizaCnad prenosova sustava, a.s. (the
“Company”), which comprise the statement of financiai position as of Decamber 31, 2019, the income
staternent and statement of comprehension income for the year then ended, the statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended and the statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended,
and the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2019, and its financial performance for the year then
ended and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by European Union as amended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We aie independent of the Company in accordance
with the provisions of Act No. 423/2015 Coli. on Statutory Audit and on Amendment
to and Supplementation of Act No. 431/2002 Coll. on Accounting, as amended (hereinafter the “Act
on Statutory Audit™) related to ethical requirements, including the Code of Ethics for Auditors that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulffilled our cther ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We beiieve that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financlal Statements and persons charged with governance for
the Financlal Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements to give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS} as adopted by European Union
as amended and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enabie the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting, unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those persons charged with governance are responsible for the supervising of the Company's financial
reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing will always detect
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a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they couid reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respcnsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of interna! control relevant to the audit in order to desigh audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financiai statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opihion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentafion, structure and content of the firancial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlving transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We inform the persons charged with governance about, including, but not limited to, the planned
scope and schedule of the audit and about any significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies of internai controls weaknesses identified during the audit.

We also provide the persons charged with governance with a declaration that we have met the
relevant requirements relating to independence, and we inform them about any relationships and
other facts that can be reasonably believed to affect our independence, as well as on any related
protective measures.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Report on Information disclosed in the Annual Report

The statutory body is responsible for information disclosed in the annuai report prepared under
the requirements of the Act on Accounting. Our opinion on the finandial statements stated above does
not apply to other information in the annual report.

In connection with the audit of financial statements, our responsibility is to gain an understanding
of the information disclosed in the annual report and consider whether such information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit of the financial
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statements, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

As at the issuance date of the auditor’s report on the audit of financial statements, the annual report
was not available to us.

When we obtain the annual report, we will evaluate whether the Company’s annual report includes
information whose disclosure is required under the Act on Accounting, and based on procedures
performed during the audit of the financial statements, we will express an opinion on whether:

s Information disclosed in the annual report prepared for 2019 is consistent with the financial
statements for the relevant year,

e  The annual report includes information sursuant to the Act on Accounting.

Furthermore, we will disclose whether material misstatements were identified in the annual report
based on our understanding of the Company and its position, obtained In the audit of the financial
statements.

Bratislava, on February 13, 2020
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Slovenska elektrizaénd prenosova siistava, a.s.

1

Statement of Financial PosHion as at 31 December 2019 prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial

Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union

(All amounts are in Euros unless stated otherwise)

As at 31 December

Note 2019 2018
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 843 541 487 816 547 144
Intangible assets 6 8 944 833 8671630
Assets representing right of use 8 657 107 0
Other investment 7 5278 315 5278 315
Receivabies 11 10 120 884 8 255 700
868 542 626 838 752 789
Current assets
inventories 10 2 564 624 858 171
Trade and cther receivables i1 28739197 42 510176
Cash and cash equivalents 12 71694 993 51 967 593
Current income tax receivable 0 8 543 922
102 998 814 103 879 962
Total assets 971 541 440 942 632 751
EQUITY
Share capital and reserves
Share capital 13 105 000 000 105 000 000
Legal reserve fund 13 21 000 000 21 000 000
{Other reserves 13 175 405 425 160 150 795
Revaluation of financial investment 109 020 109 020
Actuarial gains/loss -2 081 650 -1 088 620
Revaluation reserve 13 81 311 849 91 102 032
Retained earnings 267 577 789 253718 358
Total equity 648 322 433 629 991 595
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Nor-current bank loans 15 30098 232 32 297 222
Non-current finance lease liabilities 16 509 752 0
Non-current portion of grants and other deferred
FEVeNnUes 17 100 405 139 94 109 018
Deferred iax liability 18 60 469 862 59 173 987
Other non-current liabilities 14 0 359 441
Non-current provisions for liabilities and charges 19 11014 325 9441325
202 497 320 195 380 993
Current liabilifies
Current bank loans 15 17 205 046 11 744 599
Current finance lease liabilities 16 196 003 0
Trade and cther payables 14 85 335 343 89113 577
Current porticn of grants and other deferred revenue 17 13 810 239 16 329 744
Provisions for current liabilities and charges 19 58 761 72243
Current income tax payable 4 106 295 0
120 721 687 117 260 163
Total liabilities 323 219 007 312 641 155
971 541 440 942 632 751

Total equity and liabilities

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.



Slovenska elektrizacna prenosova sustava, a.s. 2

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2019 prepared in accordance with International Financiat
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union
{All amounts are in Euros unless stated otherwise)

The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union were prepared and
authorized for issue on 13 February 2020 by the Board of Directors.

Slovenska eioktrizaénd
prenosova sustava, a.s.

Miynské nivy 58/A
b/ 804 84 Bratislava 26 %
-02- (

..................................................... A e,
ing. Miroslav Obert Ing. Martin Malanik
Chafrman of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.



Slovenska elektrizacna prenosova sistava, a.s.

Income Statement and Statement of Comprehension Income as at 31 December 2019 prepared

in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union
{All amounts are in Euros unless stated otherwise)

3

Revenues

Capitalized costs
Consumables and services
Personnel costs

Depreciation and amortization
Impairment of fixed assets
Other operating income
Other operating expense

Operating profit

Interest income

Interest expense

Other finance income/{expense)
Finance cost, net

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Cther comprehansive income

ltems that will not be reclassified:

Retirement benefit — actuarial gains/ioss
Impact of IFRS

Revaluation of financial investment
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment
fund

Deferred tax from revaiuation cf property, plant
and equipment

Total comprehensive income

Profit attributable to:

Owners of the parent

Non-conirolling interest

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income attributabie to:
Owners of the parent

Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income for the period

Note
20
21
5,6

24
23

25
25
25

26

Year ended
31 December
2019 2018
365 564 670 359 781 475
1168 536 1065073
-190 298 117 -203 071 790
-31 796 844 -29 903 350
-50 659 322 -56 252 736
0 4 399
4 767 566 4 335751
-3 358 744 -3 288 293
95 387 745 72 670 529
90 428 115113
-548 273 -657 423
46 373 50233
411 472 -492 077
94 876 273 72178 452
-25 670 916 -21 870 894
99 305 357 50 307 558
-993 030 -568 800
-69 163 0
0 0
87 674 813 208
68 330 838 50 551 566
69 305 357 50 307 558
0 0
€9 305 357 50 307 558
68 330 838 50 551 966
0 0
68 330 838 50 551 966

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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Slovenska elektrizaéna prenosova siistava, a.s. 5
Statement of Cash Flows as at 31 December 2019 prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS} as adopted by the European Union
{All amounts are in Euros unless stated otherwise)
Year ended 31 December
Note 2019 2018
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 29 155 471 629 151 516 384
Income tax paid -11 354 795 -32 125 079
Interest receivad 80 558 143 199
Net cash generated from operating activities 144 197 392 119 534 504
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets -78 467 909 -75 164 749
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets 29 489 780 477 631
Purchase of financial assets 0 -430 500
Net cash used in investing activities -77 978 12¢ -75 117 618
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds / (repayment) of loans 3 967 222 -13 569 280
Interest paid -534 980 -785 697
income from subscribed shares and participations 0 Q
Dividends received 25 75795 56 729
Dividends paid 13 -50 000 000 -59 000 000
Net cash used in financing activities -45 431 983 -73 298 258
Net increase / {decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 19 727 300 -28 881 372
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the year
12 51 967 693 80 849 065
Cash and cash equivaients at the end of the
year 12 71 694 593 51 967 593

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.



Slovenska elektrizaéna prenosova sistava, a.s. 6
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union

(All amounts are in Euros unless stated otherwise)

1 General information

Slovenské elektrizaéna prenosova sustava, a.s. ("the Company”, "SEPS") is one of the three joint
stock companies established (pursuant to the Commercial Register) in the Slovak Republic on 21
January 2002 (date of establishment ; 13 December 2001) from the process of the division of its
predecessor Slovenské elekirarne, a.s.

The principal activities of the Company comprise the transmission of electricity in the country of the
Siovak Republic through 220 kV, 400 kV and, in a small part, through 110 kV lines and electric stations
of the transmission grid, including electricity import, export and transit. The company is also
responsible for maintaining a balanced electricity grid in the Slovak Republic and balancing the
production and usage of electricity during the time which is performed using the system services.

The Bohunice International Decommissioning Support Fund ("BIDSF") was established in relation to
the shut-down of a power plant in Jaslovské Bahunice. The main purpose of this Fund is to finance or
to co-finance the preparation and implementation of selected projects ("authorized projects”) related
to providing the technical assisfance and/or goods, work and services with respect to support the shut-
down of the power plan in Jaslovské Bohunice as a result of a decision of the Slovak Republic to do
50. The Fund supports the reconstruction, improvement and modernization of the energy production,
transmission and distribution sectors and increases their efficiency.

The Company’s operations are governed by the terms of its licence granted under the Energy Law
("the Energy Licence") and cther relevant legislation. The Regulatory Office of Network industries of
the Slovak republic (nereinafter the "URSO") regulates certain aspects of the Company’s relationships
with its customers, including the pricing of electricity and services.

By the end of 2010, the Company performed deviation settlement and organized short-term electricity
market. Since 1 January 2011 these activities has been transferred to OKTE, a.s., which has been
created for this purpose in accordance with law ard is 100% subsidiary of SEPS.

The structure of the Company’s shareholders as at 31 December 2019 was as follows:

Ownership
Absolute amount interest and
EUR voting rights %

Slovak Republic represented by Ministry of Finance 105 0040 000 100%
Total 105 009 000 100%

According to the Decree of Slovak government Nr. 481 dated 19 September 2012, The National
Property Fund of the Slovak Republic, transferred the shares of the Company without compensation
to the Slovak Republic, on behalf of which acts the Ministry of finance of the Slovak Republic. As a
result of this, effective 2 October 2012, the Slovak Republic, on behalf of which acts the Ministry of
finance of the Slovak Republic, became the sole shareholder, who owns 100% of shares of the
Company as well as 100% of voting rights.

The Company is not a sharehelder with an unlimited liability in othar entities.

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.



Slovenska elektrizaéna prenosova sistava, a.s. 7
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) as adopted by the European Union

{All amounts are in Euros unfess stated otherwise)

The members of the Company’s statutory bodies during the year ended 31 December 2019 were as
follows:

Body Function Name
Board of
Directors Chairman Ing. Miroslav Obert
Viche Chairman Ing. Miroslav Kolnik from 9 December 2019
Vice-Chairman Ing. Miroslav Stejskal till 6 December 2019
Member Ing. Martin Malanik
Member Ing. Michal Pokorny
Member Ing. Martin Golis
Member Ing. Emil Krondiak, PhD.
Member Ing. Vladimir Palko
Supervisory Chairman Ing. Vladimir Burdan
Board Vice-Chairman JUDr. Peter Pandy
Vice Chairman Michal Sokoli from 22 August 2019
Vice-Chairman Ing. Jaroslav Mikla till 30 June 2019
Member Michal Sokoli tiill 22 August 2019
Member Ing. Jan Oraé
Member Ing. Vladimir Befio
Member ing. Dusan Chvila
Member Ing. Peter Matejicek
Member ing. Rastisiav Januscak
Member JUDr. Ondrej Urban, MBA
Member Mgr. Jén Buocik till 21 March 2019
Member Ing. Mikulad Koséo
Member ing. Juraj Kovacs, MBA — from 22 March 2019 till § December
2019
Member JUDR. Pavol Kolldr — from 1 July 2019
Member Ing. Kristian Jecko — from 9 December 2019
Executive General Director ing. Miroslav Obert
managesmsant Managing Diractor of Support for
Operating Mgr. Igor Gallo

Managing Director of Operating ing. Emil Krondiak, PhD.

Managing Director of SED and

Commerce Ing. Michal Pokorny

Managing Director of Economics  Ing. Martin Malanik

Managing Diractor of Development

and Capital Investment ing. Miroslav Kcinik from 11 December till 31 December 2019
Managing Director of Development

Capital Investment and

Procurement ing. Miroslav Kcinik from 1 January 2020
Managing Director of Development
and Capital Investment Ing. Miroslav Stejskal till 10 December 2019

Managing Director of Information

and Communication Technologies Ing. Martin Golis
Managing Director of Strategy and

International Cooperation Ing. Viadimir Palko

The Company employed 546 personnel on average during 2019 (2018: 539), 8 of which were
management {2018: 8).

Registered address and identification number
Miynské nivy 59/A

824 84 Bratislava

Slovak Republic

Identification number (ICO) of the Company is: 358 291 41

The notes 6 to 64 form an integra! part on these Financial Statements.



Slovenska elektrizatna prenosova sustava, a.s. 8
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) as adopted by the European Union

(All amounts are in Euros unless stfated otherwise)

Tax identification number (IC DPH) of the Company is: SK 2020261342

2 Summary of significant accounting policy

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these Financial Statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise
stated.

2.1. Basis for preparation

Legal reasocns for preparing the Financial Statements:

The Company’s Financial Statements at 31 December 2019 have heen prepared as ordinary Financial
Statements under § 17 (6) of Slovak Act. No 431/2002 Coll. ("Accounting Act") for the accounting
period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2018.

The Accounting Act requires the Company to prepare Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 in accordance with internatienal Financial Reperting Standards ("IFRS") as adopted
by the Eurcpean Union ("EU").

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European
Union. The Company applies all IFRS and interpretations issued by international Accounting
Standards Board {hereinafter "iIASB"), as amended by the European Union, which were effective as
of 31 December 2019.

These financial statements have been prepared in under the historical cost convention, except for the
valuation of property, plant and equipment and derivate financial instruments which are valued at fair
value as at the reperting date.

The financial statements were prepared on accrual basis and under the going concern principle.

The Board of Directors may propose to the Company's shareholders to amend the Financial
Statements after their approval by the General Sharehclders Meeting. According to § 16 (9 to 11) of
the Accouniing Act the reopening the entity s accounting records after the Financial Statements are
prepared and approved is prohibited; if after the Financial Statements are approved, management
identifies that comparative information would not be consistent with the current period information, the
Accounting Act allows entitles to restate comparative information in the accounting pericd in which
relevant facts are identified.

The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the Financial Siatemenis are disclosed in
Note 4.

The Financial Statements of the Company for the previous pericd were approved by the ordinary
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 16 May 2019.

These Financial Statements are prepared in Euros ("EUR").
The Company issues consoclidated financial statements in accordance with Article 22 of Slovak Act

No. 431/2002 Coll. on Accounting, as the Company has a subsidiary OKTE, a.s. based in Mlynské
Nivy 48, 821 09 Bratislava.

2.2. Changes in the accounting policies

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company applied the following new and revised IFRS
and IFRIC interpretations:

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.



Slovenska elektrizacna prenosova ststava, a.s. 9
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union

{All amounts are in Euros unless stated otherwise)

IFRS 16 Lease

IFRS 16 replaces the IAS 17 Leases and related interpretations. The Company applied the new
standard from 1 January 2019 using the modified retrospective method. The cumulative effect of the
adoption of IFRS 16 was therefore reported as a change in the opening balance of equity as of
1 January 2019, without modifying any comparable data.

The new standard has also introduced several exceptions for the [essee, which include:

» Leagses with a lease tarm of 12 months or iess, which do not include a purchase option
o Leases where the subject of the lease is of low value (the so-called smali-ticket leases)

Introduction of the new standard has primarily affected the operating lease reported earlier. The
standard has removed the dual accounting modal at the lessee according to JAS 17, eliminating the
distinction between operating and financial lease. Under IFRS 16, a contract is a lease or contains
lease if it transfers the right to control the use of an identified asset for a certain period for
consideration. Under such contracts, the new model requires the lessee fo recognize the asset with
the right of use and the liability from the iease. Asset with the right of use is amortized and the liability
is subject to interest. To perform valuation of liabilities from the lease (determination of the current
value of leasing payments}, that had been previously recognized as operating lease, an average
weighted discounted rate (determined as an incremental rate of the lessee) of 1,9% was used by the
Company as of 1 January 2019.

As of 1 January 2019, changes due io IFRS 16 affected:
=+ [Initia! value of undistributed profits of EUR 69 163
+ Initial value of liabilities of EUR 1 120 281
» Initia! value of deferred tax receivable of EUR 18 385
» Initial value of the right of use of the asset of EUR 1 (033 432

Following the initial application of IFRS 16, the Company applied the following practical derogations
(in compliance with IFRS 1€):

A unified discount rate was used for sets of leasing contracts.

Costs of leases with residual lease periods under 12 months from the day of the initial
application (i.e. from 1 January 2019) were reported similarly to short-term leases as part
of operational costs, evenly over the lease period.

Amendments to IFRS 9: Financial Instruments Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019; they should be applied
retrospectively. Delayed application is permitted. if a company applies additions in an earlier period,
the respective information must be disclosed.

These amendments allow companies to measure certain financial assets that allow for early
repayment with negative compensation at amortized cost. These assets, which represent some loans
and debt securities, would otherwise be measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The negative compensation arises, when the contractual terms allow a repayment of the instrument
by the borrower before the contractual maturity date, where such early payment might be lower than
the unpaid value of the principal and interest. In order for the company to use the valuation at
amortized cost, negative compensation must be a “reasonable compensation for the early contract
termination”.

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

This interpretation should be applied when determining a taxable profit (tax loss), tax base, unused
fax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates in cases where there is an uncertainty about the approach
to taxation under 1AS 12. When determining whether each tax approach should be considered
independently or whether certain tax approaches should be considered together, a company should
use its judgement.

A company must assess whether it is likely that the relevant authorities will accept any tax approach
or a set of tax approaches that have been applied or are planned to be applied in the company’s tax
returns.

Amendments to IAS 28 ~ Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019; they should be applied
prospectively. Delayed application is permitted.

These amendments clarify that the Company applies IFRS 9 Financial Instruments for Long-term
Investments in Affiliates and Joint Ventures which, in essence, form a part of net investments in
affiliates or joint ventures to which the equity method does not apply. The Company applies IFR3 9 in
relation to these long-term investments before the application of IAS 28. When the Company applies
IFRS 9, it does not take into account any adjusiments to the carrying amount of the long-term
investrment that arise from the application of 1AS 28.

The Company does not expect that these supplements, when they are first applied, will have a
significant impact on the presentation of its financia! statements, because the Company does not have
any subsidiaries, affiliates or joint ventures that would represent net investments of the Cempany.
According to a preliminary conclusion, the Company will continue to be able to account for its
subsidiary as well as for its joint venture at cost.

improvements to IFRS — cycle 2015 - 2017

The improvements introduce additions to four standards and resuiting amendmentis to other standards
and interpretations that result in accounting changes accounting related ‘o presentation, recognition,
or measurement. Most of these improvements should be applied to accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019; they should be applied retrospectively.

The Company does not expect these amendments to have a material impact on its financiai
statemants.

Amendments to IAS 19 — Change, limitation or settlement of a plan

The amendment sets out how companies should determine costs of retirement bensfits if any changes
in the defined benefit plan are made. The additions require the company to use the updated
assumptions from this revaluation to determine the current service costs and net interest for the
remainder of the period after the plan change. Previously, IAS 19 did not specify how these costs
should be determined at the time after the plan change. Effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019.

2.3. Investments

Investments are carried at historical cost in these Financial Statements. The historical cost comprise
the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or fair vaiue of the consideration given to acguire the
investment at the time of their acquisition.

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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2.4. Foreign currency transactions and transiation
{0 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in these Financial Statements are presented in Euros which is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates ("the financial currency"). The Financial
Statements are presented in whole Euros.

(iiy Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are transiated into the functionai currency using the reference
exchange rates determined and declared by the European Central Bank or National Bank of Slovakia
as at the date preceding the date of accounting transaction or at any other day if required by special
regulation. At the reporting date, the assets and liabilities are translated into the functional currency
using the reference exchange rates determined and declared by the European Central Bank or
National Bank of Slovakia as at the reporting date. The iransaction in the foreign currency is
retranslated into the functionat currency using the exchange rate valid at the date of the accounting
transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transaction at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liahilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognizes in the Income Statement.

2.5. Properiy, plant and equipment

The properiy, plant and equipment is carries at cost less accumulated depreciation cut accumuiated
impairment losses, with exception to the revaiuation modei adopted for certain classes of property,
plant and egquipment.

(i} Cost

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Borrowing costs
related to the loans received, which are directly attributable to the acquisition or production of an asset,
are included in the cost of the asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Income Statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment as the date of establishment of the Company comprise assets that were
acquired as a result of the separation of Slovenské elektrarne, a.s., into three legal entities. Thess
assets were transferred at their original cost with related accumulated depreciation.

The most significant part of property, plant and equipment is represented by the network. The network
mainly includes power lines, pylons and switching stations. Useful life of networks assets varies
between 5 and 60 years (2018: between 5 and 60 years).

{ii) Revaluation of assets

Property, plant and equipment — initially, property, plant and equipment are evaluated at acquisition
costs, Acquisition cost includes all costs directly incurred in putting the respective fixed asset to its
intended use.

Subsequently, the land, buildings, halls, lines and structures, machinery and equipment and other
revalued assets reported in the balance shest at revalued amount, which represents the fair value at
the date of revaluation after deducting any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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accumulated impairment losses. Other classes of property, plant and equipment are subsequently
evaluated at historical acquisition costs less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Revaluation is carried out by an independent expert. Revaluations are performed regularly in
sufficient intervals (at least every five years}, so that the carrying amount does not differ materially
from the value, which would have been reported as at the balance sheet date using fair values.

Any increase in value on the revaluation of such property, plant and equipment shall be credited to
other comprehensive income and shall be accumulated in assets in equity revaluation surplus, taking
into account the amount that will possibly cancel the impairment of the same asset item reported
previously in the income statement. In such a case, the increase in value shall be credited to the
income statement in the amount of the impairment previously reported in the income statement. Any
impairment on the revaluation of such property, plant and equipment shail be debited to the income
statement in the amount that exceeds the balance on the account of the surplus from the revaluation
of assets in relation to the previous revaluation of that asset item. Depreciation of revalued property
items are reported as an expense in the income statement. The revaluation surplus shall be gradualiy
transferred to retained earnings over the period when the asset is used. In such a case, the amount
of the transferred surpius esquals to the difference between the depreciation calculated from the
revalued carrying amount of the asset and the depreciation calculated from the asset’s original
acquisition cost. In the event of a sale or removal of the asset from accounting, the balance of the
related revaluation surplus shall be transferred to retained earnings.

{iiiy Depreciation

The depreciation of buiidings, plant and aquipment is depreciated using the straight-line method,
starting in the month whan the property, plant and equipment is available for use, during the estimated
useful lives of non-current assets. The estimated useful lives of buildings, constructions, plant and
equipment and Intangible assets according to individual groups are as foliows:

2019 2018
Buildings, halls, networks and constructions 10 - 60 years 10 - 60 years
Machines, equipment and vehicles 2-50years 4 -50years
Other property, plant and equipment 4 years 4 years

Buildings, halls and constructions include mainly switching stations, administrative buildings,
transmission lines, halls, transformers and control rooms, pylons, towers, tanks, communications,
elevated power lines.

Machines, eguipment and vehicies include mainly hardware machines, tools and equipment, vehicles,
radio relay point and cables.

Gains and losses on disposals land, buildings and equipments are fully recognized in the income
statement.

Land and assets under construction are not depreciated.

The residual value of an asset is the estimated amount that the Company would currently obtain from
disposal of the asset less the estimated costs of disposal, if the assets were already of the age and in
the conditions expected at the end of their useful life. The residual value of an asset is nil or its scrap
value if the Company expects to use the assets until the end of its useful life. The assets” residual
values and usefu! lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Expenditures to acquire the property, plant and equipment subsequent to initial recognition are
recognized as an item of property, plant and equipment only if it is probable that they will enhance the

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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future economic benefits beyond its original performance. All other expenses are recognized as repair
and maintenance costs in the period to which it is incurred.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the
total cost of the item is depreciated separately. The Company allocates the amount initially recognizes
in respect of an item of property, plant and equipment proportionally to its significant parts and
depreciates separately each such part.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

ltems that are retired or otherwise disposed of are eliminated from the Statement of Financial Position,
along with the corresponding accumulated depreciation. Gains and losses on disposals ars
determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are recognized in operating profit.

In accordance with IAS 36, as at the date of preparation of financial statemenis, an assessment of
impairment indicators is made that would indicate the recoverabie amount of property, plant and
equipment would be less than its carrying value. In case any indicator exists at the balance sheet date,
the recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment is estimated which is a higher of the fair
value less cost to sell and value in use (i.e. the present value of future cash flows). Any impairment
loss on property, plant and equipment is recognized in the income statements in the period in which
the impairment occurs. The discount rates used in calculating the present value of future cash flows
comes from the position of the Company as well as from ecenomic environment of the Slovak Republic
as at the balance sheet date. In case the Company decides to stop the investment project or
significantly delay its scheduled termination, it considers any reduction of its value and, wherz
appropriate, record the impairment loss.

2.6. Intangible assels

intangible assets are initially measured at cost. intangible assets are recognized if it is probable that
the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset wiil flow to the Company, and the cost
of the asset can be measured reliably. Afier initial recognition, the intangible assets are measured at
cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Borrowing costs are
capitalized and included in the cost of an asset. The Company does not have intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives. Intangible assets are amortized on the straight-line basis over their useful lives.

The amortization of an intangible asset starts in the month when the intangible asset is put in use.
Intangible assets are depreciated in ling with the approved depreciaticn plan using the straight-iine
method. Monthly depreciation charge is determined as the difference between acquisition costs and
residual vailue, divided by estimated useful life of the intangible assets.

Residual value of intangible assets is assumed to be zero unless (a) there is a commitment by a third
party to purchase the asset at the end of its useful life, or (b) there is an active market for the asset
and residual value can be determined by the reference to that market and it is probable that such
a market will exist at the end of the asset’s useful life.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programs are recognized as an expense as
incurred. Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and
unique software products controlled by the Company are recognized as intangible asseis when the
following criteria are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;
management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;

there is an ability to use or sell the software product;

it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic
benefits;

s adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the software product are available; and

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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+ the expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably
measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalized as part of the software product include the software
development employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. Other development
expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognized as an expense as incurred. Development
costs previously recognized as an expense are not recognized as an asset in a subsequent period.

Computer scftware development costs recognized as assets are amortized over their estimated useful
lives, which doas not exceed 4 years. Intangible assets are depreciated over 4 years, easement of
access according to the conditions stated in the Contract on easement of access.

2.7. Impairment of non-financiai assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet in use are not subject to
amortization and are tested for impairment annually. Land, construction in progress and asssts that
are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be higher as a recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverabie amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs {o sell and value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
individually identifiable cash flows {cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that were impaired are reviewed for possible reversai of the impairmeant at each reporting date.

2.8. Non-current assets heid for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying ameount is to be recoverad
principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell.

A discontinued operation is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of or is classified
as held for sale, and

a) represents either a separate major line of business or a geographical area of operations;

b) is apart of asingle coordinated plan to dispose of aseparate major line of business or
geographical area of operations; or

¢) is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale and the disposal involves loss of control.

2.9. Financial assets

The Company classifies financial assets into three valuation categories: assets subsequently
measured at amortized cost, assets subssquently msasured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOC!) and assets subsequently measured at fair vaiue through profit or loss
{(FVPL).

A financial asset is valued at amortized cost when the following two conditions are met:

a) financial asset is held in a business model where there is intention to hold the financial asset in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

b) financial asset's contractual terms and conditions result, on specified dates, in cash flows that
represent payments of principal and interest on the outstanding principal only.

A financial asset is valued at fair value through other comprehensive income when the following two
conditions are met;

a) financial asset is held in a business model, where there is intention both to collect contractual cash
flows and to sell the financial asset; and

b) financial asset's contractual terms and conditions result, on specified dates, in cash flows that
represent payments of principal and interest on the outstanding principal only.

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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A financial asset is valued at fair value through profit or loss, uniess it is valued at amortized cost or
fair value through other comprehensive income. For certain investments in equity instruments that
would otherwise be valued at fair value through profit or loss, an entity may, however, when initially
recognizing them, irrevocably decide to present any subsequent changes in fair value through other
comprehensive income.

Initial valuation:

Apart from trade receivables that do not include a significant financing component, a financial asset or
financial liability is initially recognized by a company at its fair value plus or minus (if the financial asset
or financial liability is not valued at fair value through profit or loss) transaction costs attributable to
acquisition of the financial asset or issuance of the financial liability.

If, however, the fair value of the financial asset or financial liability at initial recognition differs from the
transaction price, an accounting entity applies the fair-value method and recognizes the difference
between the fair vaiue and the transaction price as a profit or loss.

If an accounting entity uses trade date accounting in relation to the asset that is subsequently valued
at amortized cost, such an asset shall be initially recognized at its fair value at the date of the
transaction.

Subsequent valuation:
After its initial recognition, an accounting entity recognizes a financial asset at: (a) amortized cost; (b)
fair value through other comprehensive income; or {¢) fair value through profit or loss.

An accounting entity applies impairment requirements to financial assets that are valued at amortized
cost and to financial assets that are valued at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade-date — the date on which the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The Company derecognizes financial asseis when (a) the assets are redeemed or the rights to cash
flows from the assets otherwise expired or (b} the Company has transferred the rights to the cash flows
from the financial assets or entered into a qualifying pass-through arrangement while (3) also
transferring substantiaily all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets or (i) neither transferring
nor retaining substantially ail risks and rewards of ownership but not retaining control. Control is
retained if the counterparty does not have the practical ability to sel! the asset in its entirety to an
unrelated third party without needing to impose additional restrictions on the sale.

Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and finangial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through income statement. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
term or to mitigate risks. This category includes derivative financial Instruments entered into by the
Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships. Financial assets in
this category are classified as current.

Realized and unrealized gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ,financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss" are recognized in income statement in which the fair value changed.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater

than 12 months after the reporting date. These are classified as non-current assets.

Loans and receivables are disclosed as part of non-cument and current financial assets, trade
receivables and cash and cash equivalents on the Statement of Financial Position.

Loans and receivables represent trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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2.10. Leases

a) Leases - IFRS 16

When concluding a contract, the Company assesses whether or not the contract includes a lease. A
contract is a lease contract or contains lease if it transfers the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a certain period for consideration. A contract is considered as a lease by the Company if it
meets all the following requirements:

There is certain identified asset, either explicifly or implicitly; and

The Iessee basically gets all the economic benefits resulting from the use of the identified asset;

and

The lessee is entitled to control the use of the identified asset.

Tha Company applied the new IFRS 18 standard to all contracts concluded before 1 January 2019.

For the initial reporting and subsequent revaluation of a leasing contract containing a leasing
component, the Company shall assign the agreed consideration to each leasing component
propoitionally on the basis of its value, if agreed separately.

i. Leased asset (Company as a lessee)

The Company shall report the right to use the asset and the liability from the lease in the beginning of
the lease. The initial value of the right of use of tha asset shall be set out as the sum of the initial value
of the liability from the lease, lease payments carried out before or on the day of commencement cf
the lease, initial direct costs of the lessee minus any leasing stimuli received.

When determining the period of lease, the duration of the agresd lease and the option of early
termination and/or prolongation is primarily evaluated. When assessing the probabiiity of application
of the option of prolongation and/or early termination of the lease period, the Company shall consider
all relevant facts and circurnstances providing economic stimuli for the application (non-apglication) of
these options. The period, for which the contract can be prolonged (or the period following the opticn
to early terminate the contract), shall be included in the lease period cnly if the Company is sufficiently
certain that the prolongation shall be applied.

The right of use of the asset shall be amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease period, from the
commencement of the lease until its termination. If the lease includes a transfer of title or purchase
option, the right of use of the asset shall be amortized on a straight-line basis over the period of use
of the asset. Amortization commences on the day of commencement of the lease. Assessment of any
potential impairment of the right of use of the asset shall be carried out in a manner similar to the
assessment of an impairment of a real property, machinery or equipment.

Liability from the lease shall be first valued on the day when the leased asset is made accessible to
the lessee (day of commencement of the lease). Liabilities from the lease are initially valued in the
current value of the lease payments over the lease period not paid as at the date of the initial valuation,
using the discount rate, which is the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee. The incremental
borrowing rate of the lessee has been determined on the basis of available financial information related
to the Company. If contract conditions change (e.g. the lease period is modified on the basis of the
prolongation or early termination of the contract, lease payment amount changes due to a change in
index or rate used to determine the payment amount, assessment of probability of application of
purchase option changes), a revaluation of the lease liability shall be subsequently carried out. Any
subsequent revaluation of a liability from lease shall affect, among other things, the valuation of the
right of use of the asset. If it results in a negative value of the right of use of the asset, the residual
impact shall be reported in relation to profit/loss (the value of the resuiting right of use of the asset
shall be reported as zero).

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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The Company has applied an optional derogation and reports neither the right of use of asset nor the
liability from lease for all types of lease contracts with the lease period up to 12 months. Costs related
to these leases are reported in financial accounts as operating costs evenly over lease periods.

The Company has also applied an optional derogation and reports neither the right of use of asset nor
the liability from lease in relation to lease contracts where the value of the leased asset is clearly lower
than EUR 5,000. When determining the estimated value of an asset, the Company assumes that it is
a new asset. If the asset value cannot be determined reliably, the optional derogation shall not be
applied.

In its statement of financial position, the right of use of asset is reported by the Company in relation to
fixed assets and liabilities from lease are reported by the Company in relation to short-term and long-
term liabilities. Furthermore, the Company has reported transactions related to lease in its cash fiow
statement as follows:

- Principal payments related to liability from lease are reported as part of the cash flow
related to financial activities;

- Interest payments related to liability from lease are reported as part of the cash flow related
to operating activities;

- Payments of shori-term iease, lease of minor assets and payments of variable parts of
lease not included in the valuation of liabilities from lease are reported as part of the cash
flow related {o operating activities.

0} leases — IAS 17 (comparabie period)
. Leased asset (Company as a lessee)

Any iease, where the Company assumes ail significant risks and benefits characteristic for the
ownership of the asset in question, is classified as financial lease. For the initial recognition, ieased
assets are valued using the amount equal to their fair value or the current value of the minimum lease
payments, whichever is the lower. After the initial recognition, assets are accounted for in accordance
with accounting procedures applicable to the given asset type.

Other lease type is classified as operating lease and the isased assets are not reported by the
Company in the statement of financial position.

i. Lease payments

Payment on the basis of the operating lease are reported in the profit and loss statement on the
straight-line basis over the agreed lease period. Stimuli related to the lease are accounted for as a
non-separable part of the total costs of the lease throughout the lease period.

For the financiai lease, minimum lease payments are divided between financial costs and decrease in
the outstanding liability. Financial costs are allocated to each period over the duration of the lease, so
that a constant interest rate is ensured for the residual amount of the liability.

The following new standards and interpretations have not yet become applicable as of 31 December
2019 and have not been used when preparing these financial statements. The Company does not
expect these standards to have a material impact on its financial statements.

2.11. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using weighted
average cost method. The acquisition costs include all costs associated with the acquisition of the
inventories such as customs duties or transportation costs. Net realizable value is the estimated selling
ptice in the ordinary course of business, less applicable selling costs.

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.



Slovenska elektrizaéna prenosova sustava, a.s. 18
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union

(ANl amounts are in Euros unless sfated otherwise)

2.12. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, net of provision for impairment, Revenue recognition policy is
described in the Note 2.22.

The risk of customers” insolvency is managed by financial guarantees received from customers which
can be used in case the customers "debts are not settled when became due.

A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that
the Company will not be able fo collect all the amounts due according to the original terms of the
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter into
bankruptcy or financial reorganization, defauit or delinquency in payments are considered indicators
that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flow discounted by the original
effective interest rate.

IFRS 9 sets out a three-level model of impairment of financial assets, based on credit quality changes
since their initial recognition. This model requires that a financial instrument that was not initially
recognized with credit-based impairment is classified at level 1 and that iis credit risk is continually
monitored. If any significant increase in credit risk is detected after the initial recogniticn, the financial
instrument is moved to level 2 but no credit-based impairment is iniroduced yet. if a financial
instrument is affected by credit-based impairment, it is moved to level 3.

In case of level 1 receivables, an allowance is created in the amount equal to the portion of expected
credit losses over the lifetime of the receivable resulting from possible defaults in the following 12
months. In case of level 2 or 3 receivables, an allowance is created on the basis of expected credit
losses over the lifstime of the receivable. According to IFRS 8, future-criented information have to be
taken into account when creating an allowance. Purchased or incurred financial assets affected by a
credit-based impairment are those financial assets that are impaired alrsady at thelr iniial recognition.
In those cases, allowance is always created based on their lifetime (level 3}.

Impairment of trade receivabies is recognized through an allowance accouni. Impairment losses and
their reversals, if any, are recognized in the Income Statement within Other operating expenses or
income. Trade receivables that cannot be collected are written off. Trade receivables that were written
off and are subsequently repaid by the debtors are recognized in the Income Statement within Other
cperating income.

2.13. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term

highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Cash ard cash equivalenis
are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

2.14. Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as share capital.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as
a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.15. Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Management pericdically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Financial Statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for, if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (an laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the exient that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred fax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differance is controlled by
the Company and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Dividend income is not subject to income taxes in the Slovak Republic.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities where the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set off tax assets against tax liabilities and these relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority.

According to act No. 235/2012 Z. z. the Company is payer the special levy from business activities in
regulated sectors that is calculated from the profit realized according to the Slovak Act on Accounting.
Total amount of this levy is included in the item ,Income tax expense®.

2.16. Grants and contributions related to acquisition of property and squipment

Grants and contributions are recognized at their nominal value where there is a reasonable certainty
that the grant or contribution would be received and the Company would comply with all attached
conditions. Grants and contributions relating to acquisition of property and equipment were accounted
for by setting up the grant as deferred income, which was recognized as other income over the life of
related depreciable asset in connection with the grant approved by EBRD for the Reconstruction —
Structure 2, Part 2 an Structure 3 in Krizovany, with the grant approved by EBRD for Lemesany -
Kosice — Moldava- Structure 4. The Company also has a grant approved by EBRD in the amount of
EUR 76 million for Reconstruction of switching station 400/110 kV in Bystricany and for transmission
lines in Horna Zdaa — Krizovany. This grant has been drawn partially in 2019,

2.17. Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortized cost. The difference between the proceeds {net of transaction cost)
and the redemption value is recognized in the Income Statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current iiabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 month after the reporting date.

2.18. Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to setile the obligation, and
a reiiable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are not recognized for future operating
losses. Where the Company expects a provisions to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognized as an asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain.

if there is a onerous contract presented at the Company, the present obligation according to this
contract is recognized and valued as a provision.
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Where there are number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognized
even if the likelihood of an oufflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be in a low value.

The amount recognized as a provision represents the best estimate of the expenditure required o
settle the present obligation at the reporting date, i.e. the amount that the Company would rationally
pay to setile the obligation. The estimate is determined by the judgement of the management and the
Company’s lawyers. The provision represents the individual most likely outcome as the bast estimate
of the liability.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required te settle the
obligation using a pre-tax-rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and

the risks specific to the obligation. The increase of the provision due to passage of time is recognized
as interest expense.

2.19. Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the Financial Statements. They are disclosed in the notes,
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embedying the economic benefits is remote.

2.20. Trade payables

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using effective interest method. Trade payables include the financial guarantees (Note 2.12).

2.21. Employee benefits
The Company has both defined benefit and defined centribution plans.
Pension plans

A defined plan is a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit that an empioyee will
receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Company pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity or to the Government and will have no legal or constructive
obtligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

Unfunded defined benefit pansion plan

The Company also has a long-term pensicn plan, which includes one-off payments at retirement in
accordance with legal requirements and its Collective Agreement.

According to the Collective Agreement the Company is obliged since 2018, based on the number of
years in service for the employer SEPS (including the legal predecessors of the SEPS), to pay its
employees on retirement or disability the following multiples of their average monthly salary:

Number of year in service

0 —5included 7
Qver 6 - 10 included 9
QOver 11 — 15 included 10
Over 16 — 20 included 11
Over 21 12
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The minimum requirement of the Labour Code of one-moth average salary payment on retirement and
disability is included in the above multiples.
Other benefits

The Company also pays the following life and work jubilee benefits:

- compensation of electricity costs in amount of EUR 150 (2018: EUR 150) yearly for employees
on retirement working for the Company for at least three years;
banefit is in the amount of EUR 500 when the employee reaches the age of 50 and 60 (2018:
500 EUR)

The employees of the Company expect that the Company will continue to provide such benefits and,
based on opinion of management, it is not probable that the Company would cease to provide such
benefits in the future.

The liability recognized in the Statement of Financial Position in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is the present value of the defined obligation at the reperting date.

The defined obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the Projected Unit Credit
Method. The present vaiue of the defined benefit obligation is determined (a) by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of government bonds which have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related pension liability and (b) the attributing the calculated present
values 1o the periods of service based on the plan’s benefit formula.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in equity as incurred. Past-service costs are recognized
immediately as an expanse, unless the changes to the pension plan are conditional on the employees
reamaining in the service for a specified period of time (the vesting period). Otherwise, the past-service
costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.

Defined contribution pension plans
The Company contributas to the government and private defined contribution pension plans.

The Company makes contricutions to the government health, retirement benefit, accidental and
guarantee insurance and unempleyment schemes at the statutory rates in force during the year, based
on gross salary payments.

During the year, the Company made contributions ameounting to 35.2% (2018: 35.2%) of gross salaries
up to a monthly salary ceiling, which is defined by the relevant law for such schemes together with
contributions by employees of a further 13.4% (2018: 13.4%). The cost of these payments is charged
to the Income Statement in the same period as the related salary cost.

In addition, with respect to employees who have chosen to participate in a supplementary pension
scheme, the Company makes contributions to the supplementary scheme of 3% of the total of monthiy
wages, excluding severance payment and payments at retirement.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

Liabilities for any employees benefits in the form of profit sharing and bonus plans are recognized as
other payables when there is no realistic alternative but no settle the liability and at least one of the
following conditions is met:

» there is a formal plan and the amounts to be paid are determinable before the Financial
Statements are authorized for issue; or

» the past practice created a valid expectation of employees that they will receive a profit sharing
or other bonus

¢ bonuses or profit sharing may be determined before the financial statements are authorized
for issue.
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Liahilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to be settled within 12 months and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when they are settied.

2.22. Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the Company and specific criteria will be met for
each of the Company’s activities as described below.

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of electricity
transmission and transit and other services in the ordinary course of the Company’s activities.
Revenues is shown, net of value-added tax, estimated retums, rebates and discounts.

The revenue is recognized when the respective service is rendered.

Sales of services are recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered, by
reference to completion of the specific transaction assessed on the basis of the actual service provided
as a proportion of the total services to be provided.

Dividend income is recognized when the rignt to receive the payment is established and inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

interest income is recognized in the period when it is earned on a time proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

2.23. Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution ic the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Company’s
Financial Statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
sharehoiders.

2.24. Standards issued but not yet effective

The following new standards and interpretations have not yat become applicable as of 31 December
2019 and have not been used when preparing these financial statements. The Company does not
expect these standards to have a material impact on its financial statements.

Standards and interpretations adopted by the European Union

Additions to the conceptual framework

The conceptual framework sets out:

- Objective of IFRS-based accounting

- Qualitative characteristics of useful financial information

- Definition of reporting unit

- Definitions of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expense

- Criteria for the recognition of assets and liabilities in the accounting statements and/or the
procedure of their derecognition

- Valuation bases and instructions on when and how to use them

- Concept and approach to the presentation and disclosure of financial information

Reasons for revising:
- Fillin gaps in the current version — new arrangement concerning presentation, disclosure and
valuation, definition of reporting unit
- Update the current arrangement — definition of assets and liabilities
Clarify the current arrangement - role of uncertainty in valuation
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Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Additions to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors {definition of Material)

Effective for accounting pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

These additions explain and unify the definition of significance in order to improve consistency when
using this principle in individual IFRS standards.

The Company does not expect that these additions, upon their initiai appiicaticn, shall have material
impact on its financial accounts

Changes and additions to IFRS 8, |IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmaric Reform

Effective from 1 January 2020. Delayed application is permitted. The additions deal with issues
affecting financial reporting in the period before the IBOR reform; they are mandatory and apply to all
hedging relations directly affected by uncertainties related to the IBOR reform. All companies with
hedging affected by the IBOR reform, are required to comply with the following requirements:

e When assessing whether or not future cash flows are highly probabie, the |IBOR reform shall not
change the interest rate reference value underlying the hedged cash flows. In case of any
completed hedging relationships, the same assumption is used to determine whether it is
expected that future cash flows will be hedged.

o Companies have to assess whether the sconomic relationship betwearn the hedged ifem and the
hedging instrument exisis on the basis of assumptions that the interest rate reference value
underlying the hedged item and the hedging instrument shall not change following the IBOR
reform.

= Companies must not discontinue hedging relationships during the uncertainty period resulting
from the IBOR referm solely due to the fact that the actual hedging results are not within the 80—
125% range.

= Companies may apply any individualiy identifiable requirements only in the beginning of hedging
relationship. A similar exception is also available for redesigned hedging items in hedging that are
often redesigned, &.¢. for macro hedding.

The accounting entity does not expect that the additions, when applied for the first time, will have any
material impact on its financial statements.

Standards and interpretations that have not yet been adopted by the European Union
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021; it should be applied
prospectively.

Delayed application is permitted. IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4, adopted in 2004 as a temporary standard.
IFRS 4 granted an excepticn for companies, allowing them to account for insurance contracts pursuant
to national accounting standards, which resulted in a large diversity of methods. IFRS 17 deals with
comparability issues caused by IFRS 4 and requires that all insurance centracts are accounted for
consistently, which is beneficial for both investors and insurance companies. Liabilities from insurance
shall be accounted for in their current value instead of their historical value.

The Company does not expect that these additions, when they are first applied, will have a significant
impact on the presentation of its financial statements, because the Company is not an insurance
provider.
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Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combination

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The additions narrow down the
definition of enterprise and make it clearer. Furthermore, they allow for a simpler assessment whether
or not an acquired set of activities and assets represents a set of assets or an enterprise. The
Company does not expect that these additions, upon their initial application, shalt have material impact
on its financial accounts.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current

The Amendments were issued on 23 January 2020. The amendments clarify some IAS 1 requirements
relating to materiality, order of the notes, subtotals, accounting policies and disaggregation.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of the new standard on its financial statements.

Amendments to iIFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture

European Commission has decided to posipone their adoption for indefinite period.

The amendments clarify that, in transactions with an affiliate or joint venturs, any profit or loss is
recognized to the extent and according fo whether the sold or contributed asset represents an
enterprise, as follows;

»  Profit or ioss is recognized in full if the transaction between the investor and its affiliate or a joint
ventura involves the transfer of asset or assets that represent an enterprise (regardless of whether it
is placad in a subsidiary or not), while

«  Profit or loss is recognized in part if the transaction between the investor and its affiliate or a jeint
venture includes assets that do not form an enterprise, even if the asset is placed in a subsidiary.

The Company does not expect that these supplements, when they are first applied, will have a
significant impact on the presentation of its financial statements, because the Company does not have
any subsidiaries, affiliates or joint ventures that would represent net investments of the Company.
According to a preliminary conclusion, the Company will continue to be able to account for its
subsidiary as well as for its joint venture at cost.

The Company does not plan to apply the above-mentioned new standards, additions to standards and
interpretations before their effective date. All new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations that are relevant to the Company will be applied by the Company when they become
effective.

3 Financial Risk Management
3.1. Financial risk factors

The Company's activities are exposing it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize
potential adverse sffects on the Company's performance. The Company uses derivative financial
instruments to mitigate certain risk exposures, if necessary.

Risk management is carried out by the Company under policies approved by the Board of Directors.
The Company identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in cooperation with the Company’s
operating units. The Board provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial
instruments and non-derivative financial instruments.
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{i) Market risk
{a) Foreign exchange risk
The Company provides electricity transit services and auctions in which payments are denominated

in EUR. Similarly, the Company recognizes part of purchases and credit financing with payments
denominated in EUR.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary
liabiiities at ths reporting date are as foilows:

Liabilities Assets
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
USD/CZK and other 0 -27 074 1157 183

The impact of other currencies an the Company's operations is immaterial.

Based upon the sensitivity analysis of financial assets and [iabilities recognized as at 31 December
2019, a10 % strengthening/weakening, in the EUR against CZK and USD would resuit in an
increase/decrsase in the Company's profit by EUR 105. Management considers the risk is not
significant as at reporting date.

(b} Pricerisk
The Company is not exposed to significant price risk, as it does not invest in equities.
{¢) Operating risks — prices of services

The Company is a naturai monopoly and its activities are regulated by the Regulatory Office for Network
Industries (hereinafter referred to as the “Office™). Resolutions of the Office determine tariffs, prices and
allowed costs of the Company. To determine these values, the Office applies procedures and formulas
described in the Office decrees following the principles set out by the Regulation Board in its regulation
policy for the regulation period in question.

The year 20139 is the second year of regulatory period 2017 — 2021. During this regulatory period is
used the determination of prices for access to the transmission system and electricity transmission
based on the price cap and tariffs for losses and system services are determined on the basis of
maximum permitted costs.The main part of cost for the providing system services are costs for support
services, and at the different types of the support services sets maximum prices of purchased services
or the maximum allowable cost. Part of the cost for the providing of system services is assured by
payment of fixed prices for reguiated electricity procured within the framework of the GCC, which the
Company togather with operators in Czech and Hungarian transmission system use to prevent the
supply of regulation electricity in opposite directions through the cross-border connections.

Within Czech, Slovak, Hungarian and Romanian electricity market interconnection the Company acts
as shipping agent. Relevant revenues and costs of Company are form payments for electricity
transmitted through the cross-border links within the interconnection of electricity markets.

Company revenues comprise primarily revenues from tariffs determined by the Office in the respective
resolutions {revenues from energy transmission and capacity reserves, revenues from losses in energy
transmission, revenues from system services and revenues from balancing energy acquired within the
GCC system) as well as revenues related to cross-border energy transmission, where the prices for
the transmission are not determined by the Office (revenues from the settiement of cross-border
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transmissions bsetween the operators of transmission networks within the ITC mechanism, revenues
from transmission capacity auctions and revenues from MC).

The Company’s costs consist mainly costs for purchase of support services needed to provide system
services, purchase costs for the electricity to cover losses and own consumption, costs for electricity
regulation acquired under GCC system, the costs associated with cross-border electricity transmission
and other costs needed for transmission system operation and operation of the Company.

{(d) Cash flow interest rate risk

The Company repaid the iast loan with a variable rate on 3 December 2015. In the period from
1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 it has two outstanding long-term investment loans with fixed
interest rates. For this reason the Company is not exposed to interest rate risk in consequence of long-
term loans.

The Company analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Financial situation of the
Company is stable and is not expected to refinance existing debt or alternative financing. Operating
revenues and cperating cash flows of the Company are largely independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Company has no significantl interest — bearing assets other than cash and cash
equivalents.

{iiy  Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalenis, derivative financial instruments and deposits with
banks and financial institution, as well as credit exposures to customers, including outstanding
receivables. If wholesale customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. If there is no
independent rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its
financial position, past experience and other factors.

The Company has implemented individual assessment of major customers credit risk. The input
information for the assessment is payment discipline of customer, indicators from Financial
Statements, available information on customer’s indebtedness. Major customers inciude those with
highest purchases of services. Payment conditions are set-up according o the results of the
assessmant. Average maturity of receivables upon sale of products and services is base on dates
agreed in the contracts, i.e. 3 to 30 days.

The Company is managing risk of non-payment of customers through advance payment and
guaraniees.

As for the trade receivables, the Company carries out its activities with a few significant counterparties.
Although the receivables of the Company are generated from a few customers only, the credit risk is
limited due to character of the counterparties. All the customers are strategic Slovak companies
engaged in the electricity business, most of them with an influence by the state.

Maximum exposure related to trade and other receivables is the nominal value of trade receivables
adjusted by individual impairment of EUR 23 575 {(Note 11). The Company created the impairment
provision of EUR 55 000 for the expected loss on trade receivables that are not yet due after
31 December 2019.
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The table below shows the balances of receivables due from bank and other cash at the reporting
date:

Balance as at 31 December

Counterparty Rating?® 2019 2018
Banks "

VEeobecna Uverova banka, a.s. A2 7 160 025 8 027 917
Tatra banka, a.s. A3 27 924 974 26 138 929
Ceskoslovenska obchodna banka, a.s. Baa1 10 006 386 6 545
Slovenska sporitelia, a.s. A2 6 456 674 7674 962
J & T Barnka, a. s. - 10 000 000 10 000 000
Pos&tova banka, a. s. - 10018 251 4170
Other n/a 128 683 115 173
Total 71694993 51 967 693

1 The amount of cash and short-term deposits at banks as at 31 December 2019 amounts to EUR
71 694 933 (31 December 2018: EUR 51 967 693). Furthermore, the Company has agreed with those
banks on credit lines on current accounts totalling EUR 3 550 000 (31 December 2018: EUR
18 5§50 000), which were not utilized. The Company has bank borrowings as at 31 December 2016 of
EUR 47 303 278 (31 December 2018: EUR 44 041 821), and these credit lines were utilized.

2 The Company uses the independent rating of Moody's, Fitch Ratings and Standard & Poor's.

(i) Liguidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the
availability of funding through and adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to
close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business the Company aims
to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

The Company manages liquidity risk by having an option to utilize bank overdrafts which should cover
an immediate shortage of cash. The Company regularly monitors its liguidity position and uses
overdrafts only in exceptional cases. The Company also uses the advantages of commercial terms
between the Company and its suppliers to secure sufficient financing funds to cover its needs. The
maturity of supplier's invoices is between 3 to 60 days.

The Company monitors movements of financial resources on its bank accounts on a regular basis.
Expected cash flow is prepared as follows:

» expected future cash inflows from main operations of the Company,
» expected future cash outflows securing operations of the Company and leading to settiement
of all liabilities of the Company, including tax payabies.
A cash flow forecast is prepared monthly. It identifies the immediate need for cash and, if funds are
available, it enables the Company to make term deposits and other investments.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity reserve comprises un-drawn
borrowing facility and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flow.

The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities by relevant remaining maturity. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12
months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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Between 1 Between 2
Lessthan1year and2years and5years Over 5 years

At 31 December 2019

Bank loans 17205046 17198880 12899 242 0
Finance lease 196 003 134 042 200 366 175 354
Trade and other payables 79 194 898 0 0 0
excluding liabilities not falling
under IFRS 7

96595947 17333032 13099608 175 354
Total
At 31 December 2018
Bank loans 11744 599 32 297 222 0 0
Finance lease 0 0 0 0
Trade and other payables 82 661 283 0 0 0
excluding liabilities not falling
under IFRS 7
Total 94 405 882 32 297 222 0 0

The Company has not financial derivatives.

3.2. Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives of managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability tc continue as
a going concern in order ¢ provide returns for shareholders and benefits for cther stakehoiders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Company’s management
manages sharehciders’ capital reported under IFRS adopted by the Eurepean Union at 31 December
2019 in value EUR 648 322 433 (31 December 2018: EUR 629 991 585 EUR).

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.

This ratic is calculated as foilows:

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Total equity and liabilities 971 541 440 942 632 751
Equity {(Note 13) 648 322 433 629 991 595
Equity to Total eq3uity and liabilities ratio 67% 67%

The Company’s strategy was not changed against 2018, i.e. to maintain equity to total liabilities and
equity ratio above 35%, which is compliant with externally imposed capital requirements. During 2019
and 2018, the Company complied with the externally imposed capital requirements (Note 15).

3.3. Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments is based on inputs other than quoted market prices as at the
reporting date.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade financial assets and liabilities are assumed to
approximate their fair values.

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future periods. The accounting
estimates due to its nature, would differ from actual results realized in future period. Critical estimates
and assumptions that bear a risk that their change will cause a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the future, are described below.
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{i} Regulated revenues

The Company is a natural monopoly and its activities are regulated by the Regulatory Office for
Network Industries (hereinafter referred to as the “Office”). Resolutions of the Office determine tariffs,
prices and allowed costs of the Company. To determine these values, the Office applies procedures
and formulas described in the Office decrees following the principles set out by the Regulation Board
in its regulation policy for the regulation period in question.

Company revenues comprise primarily revenues from tariffs determined by the Office in the respective
resolutions (revenues from energy transmission and capacity reserves, revenues from losses in
energy transmission, revenues from system services and revenues from balancing energy acquired
within the GCC system) as well as revenues related to cross-border energy transmission, where the
prices for the transmission are not determined by the Office (revenues from the settlement of cross-
border transmissions between the operators of transmission networks within the ITC mechanism,
revenues from transmission capacity auctions and revenues from MC).

For more details on description related to revenues see Note 3.1 (i) {c}.

(ify Pension benefits

The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of facters that are determined on
an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost
(income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the
carrying amount of pension obligations.

The Company determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest
rate that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected o
be required to settle the pension obligations. By determining the apprepriate discount rate, the
Company considers the interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of
the related pension liability.

Other key assumptions for psnsion obligations are based in part on current market conditions (Note
19).

{fili} Revaluation of property, plant and equipment

The main operating assets of the Company are assets used for electricity transmission. In the past,
the Company valued assets at the historical acquisition costs. As at 31 December 2011 and 2016 the
Company applied the revaluation model to fair value according {o IAS 16 for property, plant and
equipment, except for the classes of property containing vehicles, inventory and artwork. Revaluation
of property was made by an independent expert who used a net realizable value. In case of increass
of the assets book value during revaluation, the analysis of the possible impairment was performed
based on the determining value in use (present value of the current cash flows expecting from the use
of property). The resuit of the revaluation was and increase of the assets and related increase in other
comprehensive income accumulated in equity. Assumptions used in the revaluation model are based
on the independent expert. The final reported book values of these assets and related revaluation
differences are not necessarily the values at which these assets may have been or will be sold.

The Company also evaluated the expected remaining useful life of the property, plant and equipments
based on the expert opinion as stated above.

2019 2018
Buildings, halls, networks, constructions 10— 60 years 10 — 60 years
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 2-50years 4 -50years
Other non-current tangible assets 4 years 4 years

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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There are uncertainties regarding future economic conditions, technology changes and business
environment in the sector or regulations by URSO, which may result to future possible adjustments to
the estimated revaluations and useful life of property, plant and equipment. This may significantly
change the reported amount of assets, equity and profit of the Company in the future.

{iv) Impairment test

As at 31 December 2019, the Company performed a revaluation of the impairment losses for property,
plant and aquipment in accordance with IAS 36 on the basis of assessment of their future use, disposal
or sale. The Company concluded that ail assets used in the regulated activities relating to the
transmission of electricity represent as a whole one cash generating unit. Due to the increase in the
value of assets on its revaluation, an estimate of discounted future cash flows was also carried out
based on currently valid regulation by URSO. Basad on ths analysis, the Company concluded that the
assets used for regulated activities related to electricity transmission are not impaired.

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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5 Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in
Bulldings, Vehicles and other progress
halls and Machinery and assets ™ {cost) including
Land construction equipment™ advances (CIP)
{revaluated) {revaluated) {revaluated} {cost) Total
At 1 January 2018
Cost 16 013 796 567 868 845 248 577 583 45 138 184 49 907 589 927 507 017
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment charges 0 59 571 980 -43 705 197 -13 489 883 0 -116 767 060
Nat book value 16 013 796 508 296 865 204 872 385 31549 311 49 907 599 810 739 957
Year ended
31 December 2018
Cpening net bock value 16 013 796 508 296 865 204 872 386 31649311 40 807 599 810 738 957
Additions 4] 0 i} [¢] 60 755 B85 60 755 885
Transfers 89 145 16 829 474 2741681 32857 770 -52 518 070 1]
Disposals -88 834 -156 538 -422 102 -0 207 0 -676 681
Depreciation charge -29 633 407 -18 461 280 -6 181729 0 -54 276 416
Impairment charge 0 0 a 4389 Q 4399
Cloaing net book value 16 014 107 495 336 394 188 730 685 58 320 544 58 145 414 B15 547 144
At 31 Decembear 2018
after revaluation
Cost 16 014 107 583 984 883 250 212 968 77 206 515 88 145 414 585 653 887
Accumulated depreciaticn
and impairment charges
0 -B8 648 489 51 482 283 -18 975 971 0 -169 106 743
Net book value 16 014 107 495 336 3%4 188 730 635 58 320 544 58 145 414 316 547 144
At 31 December 2018 in
historical cosis
Costs 8726716 627 770 832 443 537 064 82 013 D40 58 180 971 1220228623
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment charges
0 -222 531 395 -268 508 982 -23 570 397 0 -514 610 784
Net book value 8725716 405 239 437 175 028 072 53 442 543 58 180 871 705 617 839
Year ended
31 December 2019
Opening net book value 16 014 107 495 336 394 188 730 685 58 320 544 58 145 414 816547 144
Additions 4] 0 8] 0 76 577 834 76 577 834
Transfers 7 664 14 652 125 1104 999 26 814 331 -42 579 119 0
Disposals -32 356 -51 920 -585 217 0 0 679 563
Depreciation charge -24 397 007 -16 354 849 -8 152072 0 -48 903 928
Impairment charge 0 0 1] 0 0 0
15 589 415 485 535 522 172 885 618 76 582 503 92 144 129 843 541 487

Net book value

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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Capital
Vehicles and other work in
Buildings, halls assets *** (cost) progress
Land and Machinery and including
construction equipment™ advances
{revaluated) (revaluated) (revaluated) {CIP} (cost) Total
At 31 December 2019
after revaluation
Cosis 15 989 415 592 934 249 248 324 520 103 472 927 02 144 129 1052 865 240
Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment charges 0 -107 394 727 -75 438 902 -26 490 124 0 -209 323 753
Net book value 15 888 415 485 539 522 172 385 518 76 982 803 92 144 129 843 541 487
At 31 December
2019 in historical
costs
Costs 8705215 640 771 117 431 392 464 107 695 027 92 009 218 1280 573 041
Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment charges 0 -236 558 660 -269 032 992 -30 523 486 0 -536 115 138
Net book value 8705215 404 212 457 162 359 472 77 171 541 92 009 218 744 457 903

** Includes 1T equipment belonging to switchyards that was revalued.
*+* Includes inventory, other fixed tangible assets, works of art and collections and IT not belonging to switchyaids,

The first revaluation of property, buildings, halls, lines and structures took place on 1 January 2011.
As at 1 January 2018, an independent expert who is in no way related tc the Company performed
update of the revaluation of land, buildings, halls, lines and structures, machinery and equipment and
other revalued assets on the basis of ohserved siate and determination of replacement costs of assets,
with reference to records of current market transactions for similar property items and methodology for
estimating net realizable value. Net realizable values are based on current purchase prices at which
assets could be acquired as new and the estimated residual values, which are based on current
acquisition costs of the assets, usefui life and age of existing assets {net realizable value iess
depreciation methodology).

The Company updated the revaluation as at 1 January 2018. The revaluation resulted in increase in
the accounting value of property, plant and equipment by EUR 20 875 876, increase of deferred tax
liability by EUR 4 592 693, increase of profit by EUR 129 552 and increase of revaluation gains in
other comprehensive income accumulated as a revaluation surplus within equity in the amount of EUR
16 153 632 after taking the effect of deferred taxes into account.

Revaluation of assets to fair value was performed by an independent expert using a net realizable
value; he also assessed the useful life of each asset item. The revaluation resuited in a reduction of
annual depreciation by EUR 2 287 021 in 2016 compared to the previous accounting period.

As at 31 December 2019, the most significant iterns within property, plant and equipment represent:
substations and administrative buildings in revalued net book value of EUR 367 459 707, in historical
net book value of EUR 341604 084 {31 December 2018: revalued net book value of EUR
364 378 000, historical net bock value of EUR 334 307 285 EUR); transmission lines at revalued net
book value of EUR 339 908 109 , in historical net book value of EUR 273 035 875 EUR (31 December
2018: revalued net book value of EUR 351 246 960 , in historical net book value of EUR 276 395 323
EUR).

As at 31 December 2019, the Company assessed all internal and external indicators. The Company
did not find any indicators that would require that the impairment test be carmried out on a group of
assets as at 31 December 2019.

The notes 6 o 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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Non-current assets under construction consists mainly of EUR 14 927 720 EUR for upgrade and
innovation RIS SED Zilina (31 December 2018: EUR 7 930 700 EUR ), EUR 4 970 580 for 2x400kV
transmission line ESt Rimavska Sobota — state border (31 December 2018: EUR 1 487 769), EUR,
9 521 438 for the Bystritany 400 kV substation from the grants {31 December 2018: EUR 6 704 960),
EUR 12 242 703 for remote management of substation in ES Podunajské Biskupice (31. December
2018: EUR 3318 625), EUR 7 839 368 for transformation 2x400 kV in Bystricany — KriZovany
(31 December 2018: EUR 6 741 348), EUR 2 265 635 for remote management of substation in ES
Spisska Nova Ves (31 December 2018: EUR 11 725 110), 1 965 478 for transformation 2x400 kV
Bystritany — Horna Zdana (31 December 2018: EUR 1 928 751), EUR 1 027 005 for Bystri¢any 400
KV substation (31 December 2018: EUR 904 843), EUR 1212 798 for TR 400/110 kV Bystri¢any —
T401 (31 December 2018: EUR 641 566), EUR 1 216 005 for the 2x400 kV line from Velky Meder to
Hungarian border (31 December 2018: EUR 1 179 060), EUR 1 507 579 for the 400 kV Krizovany
substation — enlargement financed using a grant (31 Decamber 2018; EUR 634 804), EUR 3 033 635
for Rimavska Sobota 400 kV substation— extension (31 December 2018: EUR 266 156), EUR
16 551 842 for 400 kV double line Bystritany — Krizovany financed using a grant (31 December 2018:
EUR 882 207), EUR 0 for the upgrade of remote SCADA RIS clienis (31 December 2018: EUR
836 624), EUR 0 for the upgrade of MUX equipment {31 December 2018: EUR 2 324 806), EUR 0 for
extension of Horna Zdana 400 kV substation from grants (31 December 2018: EUR 4 051 438),
and EUR 0 for Horna Zdafa 400 kV substation— extension {31 December 2018; EUR 520 147),These
assets ara not available for use at the reporting date.

in 2019, borrowing costs are capitalized in accordance with accounting policies of the Company,
borrowing costs EUR 0 (2018: EUR 0) as a part of the acquisition cost of non-current assets. The
effective interest rate related to capitalization as at 31 December 2019 amounted 1.26% p.a.
(31 December 2018: 1.28% p.a.}.

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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The following table includes property leased by the Company as lessor under operating lease
agreements:
Land, buildings Plant, machinery

and structures  and equipment Total
As at 31 December 2019
Cost 22 336 566 9562 22346 128
Accumulated depreciation -3 300 832 -7 906 -3 308 738
Net book value as at 31 December 2019 19 035734 1656 19 037 390
As al 31 December 2019
Historical acquisition cost 25 252 398 20064 25 272 462
Accumulated depreciation historical -6 901778 -19 200 -6 920 978
Historical net book value as at 31 December 2015 18 350 620 884 18 351 484
As at 31 December 2018
Cost 22 348 248 g 562 22 357 810
Accumulated depreciation -2 495 507 -7 758 -2 503 275
Net book value as at 31 December 2018 19 852 741 1784 18 854 535
As at 31 December 2018
Historical acquisition cost 25 328 565 20 064 25 348 629
Accumulated depreciation historical -6 293 069 -19 128 6312197
Historical net book value as at 31 Dacember
2018 19 035 498 936 19 035 432

The Company also Ileases optic fibres and circuits. The value of such fibres and circuits is difficult to
determing, as they are part of other assets that are used by the Company.

There are no restrictions of ownership relating to property, plant and equipment other than those
disclosed in these Notes to the Financial Statements. No property, plant and eguipment has been
pledged.

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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Type and amount of insurance of non-current intangible and tangible assets

The Company has insured its assets against the following risks:

. Type of Amount insured as ;
Insured object insurance at 31 Dec 2019 Name of the insurance company
Damage or Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenska poistoviia, a.s.
Buildings, halls and total loss 217 369 609 { co-insurance: Kooperativa poistovia, a. s.
constructions (natural Vienna Insurance Group, Colonnhade Insurance
disaster) S.A., Generali Poistoviia, a. 5.)
Machines, tools and
equipment, vehicles Damage or Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenska poistoviia, a.s.
without car licence  total loss 613 423 693 { co-insurance: Kooperativa poistoviia, a, s.
plates, transformers, (natural Vienna Insurance Group, Colennade Insurance
RRB —radio relay  disaster) S.A., Generali Poistoviia, a. 5.)
point, cables
Damage or Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenska poisfovfia, a.s.
. total loss { co-insurance: Kooperativa poistoviia, a. s.
Elevatediliing {natural [ Vienna Insurance Group, Colonnade Insurance
disaster) S.A., Generali Poisfovfia, a. s
Damage or Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenska poisfoviia, a.s.
. total loss ( co-insurancs: Kooperativa poistoviia, a. s.
Office equipment {natural INEENGE Vienna Insurance Group, Colonnade Insurance
disaster) S.A., Generali Poistoviia, a. 5.)
Damage or Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenska poistoviia, a.s.
Inventory and other total loss 1 331 080 { co-insurance: Kocperativa poistoviia, a. s.
tangible assets (naturai Vienina Insurance Group, Colonnade Insurance
disaster) S.A., Generali Poistovia, a. s
Schedu‘led capital Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenska poistoviia, a.s.
expendifures, Damage or total . . - ) =
automatic loss (natural 93 745 591 ( co-insurance: Kooperativa poistoviia, a. s.
. Vienna insurance Group, Colonnade Insurance
coverage of new  disaster) e "
S.A., Generali Poistovna, a. s
assets
Damage or Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenska poistoviia, a.s.
| . total loss i K i istovri
nventories 1 500 000 ( co-Insurance; Kooperatuva polstovna, a. s.
(natural Vienna Insurance Group, Colonnade Insurance
disaster) S.A., Generali Poistoviia, a. s.)

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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Insured object

Type of insurance

Amount
insured as
at 31 Dec
2019

Name of the insurance company

Cash, valuables,
stamps and vouchers,
documentary securities
deposited in the vaults
and mailboxes

Set of movable tangible
fixed assets, cables,
elevated power line

Inventory and other
TFA

Inventories, construction
components

Measuring devices,
cables, and laptops in
motor vehicles

Machinery, equipment
and cables

Scheduled capital
expenditures

Isurance of cybernetic
risks

Insurance against theft,
burglary and robbery, and
robbery during transport
and vandalism

Insurance against theft,
burglary and robbery, and
robbery during transport
and vandalism

insurance against theft,
burglary and robbery, and
robbery during transport
and vandalism

insurance against theft,
burglary and robbery, and
robbery during transport
and vandalism

Insurance against theft,
burglary and robbery, and
robbery during fransport
and vandalism

insurance of machinery
and equipments (damage
or destruction of
machinery)

Insurance of machinery
and equipments (damage
or destruction of
machinery)

16 597

331 939

290 966

165 970

66 388

591 145 794

65 000 000

500 000

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenska
poistoviia, a.s.

( co-insurance: Kooperativa
insurance a.s. Vienna Insurance,
Colonnade Insurance S.A,,
Generali Poistoviia, a. s.)

L ead insurer: Allianz - Stovenska
poistoviia, a.s.

{ co-insurance: Kooperativa
insurance a. s. Vienna Insurance,
Coionnade Insurance S.A,,
Generali Poistoviia, a. s.)

Lead insurer: Allianz - Siovenska
poisfovia, a.s.

{ co-insurance: Kooperativa
insurance a. s. Vienna Insurance,
Colonnade Insurance S.A,
Generali Poistovia, a. 8.)

Lead insurer; Allianz - Siovenska
poistoviia, a.s.

{ co-insurance: Kooperativa
insurance a. s. Vienna Insurance,
Colonnade Insurance S.A,
Generali Poistoviia, a. s.)

Lead insurer: Alilanz - Slovanska
poistoviia, a.s.

{ co-insurance: Kooperativa
insurance a. s. Vienna Insurance,
Colonnade Insurance S.A,
Generali Poistovia, a. 5.)

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenska
poistoviia, a.s.

{ co-insurance: Kooperativa
insurance a. s. Vienna lnsurance,
Colonnade Insurance S.A,
Generali Poisfovna, a. s.)

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenska
poistoviia, a.s.

{ co-insurance: Koaperativa
insurance a. s. Vienna insurance,
Colonnade Insurance S.A,
Generali Poistovia, a. s.)

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenska
poistoviia, a.s.

( co-insurance: Kooperativa
insurance a. s. Vienna Insurance,
Colonnade Insurance $.A,
Generali Poistoviia, a. s.)

The noles 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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Amount
insured as
at 31 Dec

2019

Insured object Type of insurance Name of the insurance company

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenska
poistoviia, a.s. { co-insurance:
Kooperativa poistovia, a. s.

Terrorism 10 000 0op  Vienna Insurance Group,
Colonnade Insurance S.A,

Generali Poistovia, a. s.)

Compared to 2018, there was a change in terrorism risk insurance and in cne of the conscrtium
insurance companies.

6 Inténgible assets

Software and Intangible
other intangible assets not yet
assets in use Tetal

At 1 January 2018

Cost 49037 543 2329340 51 366 883
Accumulated amortisation and impairment

charges -43 305 242 ¢] -43 305 242
Year ended 31 December 2018

Opening net book amount 5732 301 Z 329 340 8 061 641
Additions 0 2 586 309 2 586 309
Transfers 1190 264 -1 190 264 o
Disposals 0 0 0
Amortisation charge -1 976 320 0 -1 976 320
Ciosing net book value 4 946 245 3 725 385 8 671 630
At 31 December 2018

Cost 44 280 602 3725385 48 005 987
Accumulated amortisation and impairment

charges -39 334 357 0 -39 334 357

Net book value 4 946 245 3725 385 8 671 630
Year ended 31 December 2018

Year ended 31 December 2019

Opening net book amount 4 946 245 3725385 8 671 630
Additions 0 1 845 106 1845106
Transfers 2907 327 -2 907 327 0
Disposals 0 0 0
Accumulated amortisation and impairment -1 571 903 0 -1 571903
At 31 December 2019

Cost 47 173 927 2 663 164 49 837 091
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
charges -40 892 258 0 -40 892 258

The computer software consists mainly of software SAP, software for registry and Damas Energy. Net
book value of SAP is EUR 326 081 (31 December 2018: EUR 319 610), remaining amortization period
is 4 year. Net book value of Damas Energy is EUR 198 845 (31 December 2018: EUR 256 435),
remaining amortization period is 1 year.

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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intangible assets not yet in use include EUR 1 070 760 for upgrade and innovation RIS SED Zilina
(31 December 2018: EUR 1 070 760}, EUR 356 688 EUR for Il. phase of implementation of new office
information system, (31. December 2018: EUR 334 555 EUR), EUR 447 140 for implementation of
security systems (31. December 2018; EUR 235 100 EUR), EUR 418 702 for digitalization process
(31. December 2018: EUR 88 532 EUR), EUR 0 for a new registry management system (31 December
2018: EUR 781 544)

Internally generated intangible assets are immaterial.

There are no restrictions of ownership relating to intangible assets and no intangible assets are
pledged.

7 Shares in subsidiaries and other investments

2019 2018
At the begining of the year 5278 315 4 847 815
Additions 0 430 500
Disposals 0 0
At the end of the year 5278 315 5278 315

Eight providers of transmission systems: Verbund - Austrian Power Grid AG, CEPS, a.s., Electro-
Slovenija d.o.0., E.ON Netz GmbH, MAVIR Hungarian TSO Company Ltd., PSE-Operator S.A., SEPS
and Vattenfall Europe Transmission GmbH estabilished in 2008, was founded by the auction office
{CAQ) based, Gute Anger 15, Freising, Germany in order to Ceniral Auction Office (CAQ) based in
Gute Anger 15, Freising, Germany for the purpose of introducing regional coordinated management
of network cverloading. In 2013 Company’s share on the capital was 12.5 %. On 23 May 2014 was
entered in the German Register a new parner - Croatian provider HOPS d. 0. 0. and Company’s share
on the capital was reduced to 11.11%.

The General Assembly of the Ceniral Allocation Office GmbH (CAO} and the Capacity Allocation
Service Company.EU S.A. (CASC.EU), two regicnal coffices for allocating cross-border capacity for
electricity transmission, on 24 June 2015 approved the merger agreement and the creation of a Joint
Allocation Office (JAO).

JAQ is a service company founded by twenty-five fransmission system operators of the twenty-two
countries - 50Hertz (Germany), Admie (Greece), Amprion (Germany), APG (Austria), CEPS (Czech
Republic), CREOS (Luxembourg), ELES (Slovenia), ELIA (Belgium), EnerginetDK (Denmark), HOPS
{Croatia) MAVIR (Hungary), PSE (Poland), RTE {France), Slovenska elektrizaéna prenosova slstava,
a.s./ SEPS, Statnett (Norway), Swissgrid {(Switzerland) TenneT (Germany), TenneT (Netherlands),
Terna (ltaly), TransnetBW (Germany). Its main task is to conduct an annual, monthly and daily
auctions of rights to transmit electricity across 29 borders in Europe and act as backup for the
European Market Coupling.

New allocative platform was established on 1 September 2015. Following the merger until the end of
2015, both agencies operated in parallel to ensure the uninterrupted implementation of monthly and
daily auctions on all relevant borders. All acts and activities are fully moved to Luxembourg in the first
quarter of 2016. For the year 2018 are not available data about equity and profit/loss vet. The
Company does not expect that the investment is impaired.

In June 2018, Slovenska elektrizaéna prenosova slstava, a. 5. became a shareholder of TSCNET
Services GmbH (TSCNET). TSCNET is one of the European Regional Security Coordinators (RSC)
based in Munich, Germany. TSCNET provides integrated services for the operators of transmission
systems and their dispatching centres in order to maintain the operational safety of the power grid.

TSCNET shareholders are also the organization’s major customers. At present, the following 14
transmission system operators from eleven European countries are the organization's shareholders:

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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50Hertz (Germany), Amprion (Germany), APG (Austria), CEPS (Czech Republic), ELES (Siovenia),
HOPS (Croatia), MAVIR (Hungary), PSE {Poland), SEFS (Slovakia), Swissgrid (Switzerland), TenneT
(Germany}, TenneT (Netherlands), TransnetBW (Germany) and Transelectrica (Romania). For 2019,
data on equity and profit or loss is not yet available. The Company does not expect any impairment of
the invesiment.

On 11 August 2010 the Company OKTE, a.s. based in (Mlynské nivy 48, 824 84 Bratislava) has been
incorporated in the Business Register. The sole shareholder of the company is Slovenska elektrizacna
prenosova slstava, a.s. The share is being made up of 4 644 registered share at a nominal value of
EUR 1 000 and legal reserve fund in amount EUR 3 315.

8 Assets representing the right of use

Company as lessee

The Company leases buildings, land, machinery, etc. Lease contracts are concluded for lease periods
ranging from 3 years to indefinite period.

The following table shows the overview of rights of use of the leased assets according to IFRS 16,
reported as part of real property, machinery and equipment:

Land, buildings Machirnes and equipment Total
and structures
As at 1 January 2019 - - -

Impact of IFRS 16 425 905 807 527 1033 432
Additions 147 581 12 471 160 052
Depreciation -26 616 -156 875 -183 491
Disposals -351 498 -1 388 -352 886
As at 31 December 2019 165 372 461 735 657 107

2 Firancial instruments by category

The reconciliation of classes of financial instruments with measurement categories under IFRS 9 is as
follows:

Financial
assets at fair
value through Loans and
As at 31 December 2019 profit and loss receivables Total
Assets as per Statement of Financial Position
Trade receivables (before impairment provision}) 0 25962 769 25962 769
Other receivables 0 906 031 906 031
Cash on bank accounts and cash in hand 0 71 694 993 71694 993
Total 0 98 563 793 98 563 793

The notes 6 {o 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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Other
financial
Financial liabilities -
liabilities at fair carried at
value through amortized
As at 31 December 2019 profit and loss cost Total
Liabilities as per Statement of Financial Position
Trade and other payables 0 56 626 417 56 626 417
Received guarantees 0 20 278 259 20 278 259
Payabies due to employees 0 1 507 657 1507 657
Social security 0 869 470 869 470
Other payables 0 2290222 2290222
Bank loans 0 48 009 043 48 009 043
Total 0 129 581 068 129 581 068
Financial
assets at fair
vaiue through Loans and
As at 31 December 2018 profit and loss receivables Total
Assets as per Statement of Financial Position
Trade receivables (before impairment provision) 0 34 490 170 34 490 170
Other receivables 0 321250 321 250
Cash on bank accounts and cash in hand 0 51 967 893 51967 683
Total 0 86 779 113 86 779 113
Other
financial
Financia! liabilities —
liabilities at fair carried at
value through amortized
As at 31 December 2018 profit and loss cost Total
Liabilities as per Statement of Financial Position
Trade and other payables 0 862 171 248 62 171 248
Received guarantees 0 19 850 008 19 850 008
Payables due to employees 0 1223 362 1223 362
Social security 0 777 725 777725
Other payables 0 640 027 640 027
Bank loans 0 44 041 821 44 041 821
Total ] 128 704 191 128 704 191

10 [nventories

As at 31 December

2019 2018

Prepayments shipper 1514 684 o
Materials and spare parts 1049 940 858 171
2 564 624 858 171

There are no restrictions of ownership relating to inventories. No inventories are pledge.

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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11 Trade and other receivables

As at 31 December

2019 2018

Current receivables and prepayments:

Neither past due nor impaired trade receivables 25838619 34315773
Past due but not impaired trade receivables 99 483 149 730
Individually impairad receivables 24 667 24 667
Trade receivables (before provision for impaiment) 25 962 769 34 490 170
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables -78 575 -28 043
Trade receivables — net 25884 194 34 462 127
VAT — receivable 0 4 898 098
Grant claims 0 662 589
Prepayments 1005137 1016 651
Other receivables 906 031 321 250
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 943 835 1 149 461
Other receivables — net 2 855 003 8 048 043
Total trade and other receivables 28738 197 42 510 178

The claim for grant represents the grant for project V480 / V481 Velky Mader - SR border and V448 /
V447 Rimavska Scbota - SR horder in the amount of EUR 0 (31 December 2018: EUR 662 588).

Long-term receivables include the amount of EUR 2 467 700 related to the refinancing of costs of
capital construction within the Podunajské Biskupice power station incurred by Zépadosiovenska
distribuénd, a. s. (31 December 2018: EUR 2 467 700 ), the amcunt of EUR 1 079 061 related to the
refinancing of costs of capital construction within the Poddunajské Biskupice power station incurred by
Zapadoslovenska distribu¢na, a. s. (31 December 2018: EUR 0), the amount of EUR 3 500 000 related
to the refinancing of costs of capital construction within the Senica power station incurred by
Zapadoslovenska distribuéna, a. s. (31 December 2018: EUR 3 500 000) and the amount of EUR
2 288 000 related to the refinancing of costs of capital construction within the Est BystriGany power
station incurred by Fortischem, a. s. (31 Decemnber 2018; EUR 2 288 000), the amount of 786 123 EUR
related to the capital construction within the Est Bystricany (31 December 2018: 0 EUR}

The analysis of irade receivables by the remaining period to maturity is shown in the following table:

As at 31 December

2019 2018
Receivables within due date 25 838 619 34 315773
Overdue receivables 124 150 174 397
Total 25 952 767 34 480 170

The analysis of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired by their credit quality is as
follows:

As at 31 December

2019 2018
OKTE 11 037 829 13 552 550
Slovenskeé elektramne, a.s. 178 483 80978
Zapadoslovensks distribuéna, a .s. 2766 135 3053252
Stredoslcvenska energetika Distribiicia, a. s. 1 835 646 1 830 584
Vychodoslovenska distribuéna, a. s. 1153 947 1283225
CEPS, a.s. 2761928 3721757

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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MAVIR 1939 222 7 501 608
Others 4 165 429 3291819
Neither past due nor impaired trade receivables 25 838 619 34315773

All receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are classified as trade receivables. The credit
quality of receivables that are neither past due nor impaired is monitored regularly by the management
of the Company. Although the receivables of the Company are generated from a few customers only,
the credit risk is limited due to character of the counterparties. All the customers are sirategic Slovak
companies, most of them engaged in electricity business, with an influence by the state.

As at 31 December 2019 trade receivables of EUR 99 483 (31 December 2018: EUR 149 730 ) were
past due but not impaired. Their ageing analysis is as follows:

As at 31 December

2019 2018
110 90 days 44 364 149 730
91 to 180 days 55119 0
Total past due but not impaired trade recelvables 99 433 149 730

The balance of trading receivables as at the end of period inciudes overdue receivables of the
accounting value of EUR 44 364 {2018: EUR 149 730), for which the Company has not created
adjustments, as no significant changes in the credibility of debtors have occurred and therefore the
receivables are still deemed recoverable. The Company has created an adjustment of EUR 55 000 to
cover overdue receivables amounting fo EUR 55 119 based on the expected loss from trading
receivables not overdue as of 31 December 2019 (2018: EUR 5 000).

The Company recorded no collateralized receivables.

As at 31 December 2019, trade receivables of EUR 24 667 (2018: EUR 24 667) were individually
impaired. As at 31 December 2019, the Company recorded an impairment provision of EUR 23 575
(2018: EUR 23 043).

The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

As at 31 December

2019 2018
181 to 360 days 0 438
Over 361 days 24 667 24 229
Total individually impaired receivables 24 667 24 687

The movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables are recognized in the Income
Statement. Movements are presented below:

2018 2018
At the beginning of the year 28 043 23 313
Additional provision for receivables impairment 532 296
Additional provision for receivables impairment under IFRS 9 50 000 5000
Release of unused provision 0 -566
Receivables written —off during the year as uncollectible 0 0
At the end of the year 78 575 28 043

No receivables have been pledged as collateral. The Company does not have any restrictions to deal
with receivables.

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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12 Cash and cash equivalents
As at 31 December

2019 2018

Cash at bank and in hand 41 694 993 41 967 693
Short-term bank deposits 30 000 000 10 000 000
71 694 993 51 967 693

At 31 December 2019 cash and cash equivalents were fully available for the Company’s use.
For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flow, the cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

As at 31 December

2019 2018

Cash and bank balances and deposits with original maturities of less than
three months: 71 694 993 51 967 €93
71 834 993 51 987 693

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivaients as at 31 December 2019 are not substantially
different from their fair value. The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited by the carrying value of
cash and cash equivalents.

The analysis by credit quality is reported in Note 3.1 (ii).
13 Shareholder's Equity

As at 31 December 2019, the registered capital consisted of: 1G5 bearer shares at a nominal value cf
EUR 1 000 000. The Company has no subscribed capital that has not been entered in the Commercial
Register. Shares are associated with equal rights. Legal reserve fund has attained the the minimum
amount of mandatory contribution under Commercial Code as at 31 December 2019.

Legal reserve fund is obligatorily created from profit of the Company in accordance with the Slovak.
According to the Commercial Code, the Company is obliged to create a legal reserve furd in the
amount of 10% of the share capital at the time of the incorporation of the Company. This amount must
be increased annually by at least 10 % from net profit, until the legal reserve fund achieves 20% of the
share capital. Use of this fund is restricted under the Commercial Code only to cover losses of the
Company and it is not a distributable reserve. Legal reserve fund amournted to EUR 21 000 000 as at
31 December 2019 (as at 31 December 2018: EUR 21 0G0 000).

Other capitai reserves comprise statutory fund of EUR 175 405 425 to finance capital expenditure
activities (2018: EUR 160 150 795) and differences from revaluation of assets amounted to EUR
81 311 849 (2018: EUR 91 102 032).

The statutory fund to finance future capital expenditures is used to accumulate internal funds of the
Company allocated from profit dedicated to cover future capital expenditures. In 2019, the Company
contributed to this fund the amount of EUR 15 254 630 (31 December 2018: 0). The rules for the use
of funds allocated to the statutory fund for capital expenditures are governed by the general financing
principles of the Company in relation to capital expenditures, and by the acquisition guidelines. Funds
on the statutory fund to finance capital expenditures are accumulated from amounts allocated to the
statutory fund based on the decision of General Meeting.

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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The movements in revaluation surplus are presented in the table below:

2019

Opening amount 91 102 032
Revaluation surplus reclassified to retained eamings as at 31 December 2012 -12 503 616
Deferred tax on revaluation surplus as at 31 December 2019 2 625759
Deferred tax related to special levy from business activities in regulated sectors 87 674
At the end of the period 81311849
2018

Opening amount 105 659 922
Revaluation surplus reclassified to retained earnings as at 31 December 2018 -19 457 086
Deferred tax on revaluation surplus as at 31 December 2018 4 085 988
Deferred tax related to special levy from business activities in regulated sectors 813 208
91 102 032

At the end of the period

The Company believes that the property revaluation surplus is not immediately available for
distribution to the shareholders. Parts of the revaluation surplus are reclassified to retained earnings
by the difference batween depreciation of the revaluated values and original acquisition costs of the
property. The rest of the revaluation is reclassified into retained earnings at the sale and disposal of

the assets.

The conversion on IFRS 16 had an impact on the opening balance of retained earning as of 1. January

2019 in amount of EUR 89 163.

The General Meeting held on 16 May 2019 approved the Financial Statements for 2018. In 2019 were
approved dividend for 2018 in the amount of EUR 476 190,48 {rounded) per share at the nominal

value of EUR 1 000 €00 {in 2018: EUR 561 904,76 rounded amount).

The profit for the year 2018 of EUR 50 307 558 was distributed as follows:

2018 profit 2017 profit

distribution distribution

Dividends 0 0
Appropriation to the Legal Fund 0 0
Appropriation to the Statutory Fund 0 ¥}
Transfer to retained earnings 50 307 558 74 254 630
Total 50 307 558 74 254 830

In 2019, the Company paid dividends for 2018 in the amount of EUR 50 000 000 from retained
earnings. As at 31 December 2019 retained earnings of the Company (including profit of the current
accounting period and revaluation surplus reclassified to retained earnings) amounted to EUR

267 577 789 (31 December 2018: EUR 253 718 368).

As at the date of authorization of these Financial Statements for issue, the statutory body has not yet

proposed the distribution of profit for 2019,

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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14 Trade and other payables

As at 31 December

2019 2018
Trade payables 56 626 417 62 171 248
Received guarantees 20278 289 19 850 008
Payables due to employees 1 507 657 1223 362
Social security 869 470 777725
Accrued personnel expenses 3 530000 4 258 800
Social fund 233 318 192 407
Cther payables 2290 222 640 027
Total 85 335 343 89 113 577

The fair value of trade and other payables is not significantly different from their carrying amount.
Liabilities include the amcunt of EUR 700 245 EUR relating tc deliveries for investment shares not
inveiced as of 31 December 2019 (31. December 2018: EUR 920 158 EUR ).

The long-term part of this payables is recognized in other non-current liabilities in the amount of EUR
359 441 as of 31 December 2018,

No payables are secured by a lien or other collateral.

The analysis of payables by the remaining maturity period is as follows:

As at 31 December

2019 2018
Payables not yet due 82 628 691 87 240 982
Overdue payables 2 7086 852 1 B72 5095
Total 85 335 343 89113 577

Social fund

Appropriations to and withdrawals from the social fund during the accounting period are shown in the
following table:

2019 2018
Opening balance at 1 January 192 407 131 708
Appropriations expensed 974 717 932 703
Usage -933 806 -872 004
Closing balance at 31 December 233 318 192 407

15 Bank loans and finance lease liabilities
As at 31 December

2019 2018
Non-current
Long term portion of bank loans (a) 30 098 232 32 297 222
30 098 232 32 297 222
Current
Short term portion of bank loans (a) 17 205 046 11 744 599
17 205 046 11 744 599

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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(a) Bankloans

The maturity of bank loans is as follows:
As at 31 December

Maturity 2019 2018
Short term portion of bank loans 17 205 046 11 744 599
Long term portion of bank loans

1-5vyears 30 098 232 32 297 222
over 5 years 0 0
Total 47 303 278 44 041 821

The fair value of current borrowing approximates their carrying amount, as the impact of discounting
is not significant.

The Company has the following borrowing facilities which are not utiiized:

As at 31 December

2019 2018
Floating rate:
- Expiring within one year 0 3 550 000
- Expiring beyond one year 3650 000 0
Fixed rate
- Expiring within one year 0 15 000 000
- Expiring beyond one year 0 0
Total 3 550 000 18 550 000

Lcans from VUB, a. s. and from Slovenska sporiteffia, a. s. include certain financial covenants related
to limits on debt ratios, interest coverage and debt to operating profit ration calculated on the basis of
the Financial Statements of the Company. The Company compiied with these covenants at the
reporting date of these Financial Statements.

The effective interest rates at the reporting date were as follows:

2019 2018

Bank borrowings 1.26% 1.28%

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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16 Lease payables
As at As at1
December January
2019 2019
Long term
Long term portion of lease 509 762 877 905
509 762 877 05
Shortterm
Short term portion of lease 196 003 243 076
196 003 243 076

The maturity of lease payables is as follows:
31. December 2019

Less than one year 198 003
1 -5 years 334 408
More than 5 years 175 354

705 765

17 Grants and deferred revenues

Deferred revenues include the following items:

As at 31 December

2019 2018

Deferred revenues
EBRD grant Krizovany - long-term portion {a) 9704 098 10 522 649
— current portion (a) 820 527 822 510
EBRD grant Lemesany — long-term portion (b) 31376 477 33010108
— current portion (b) 1628 369 1629 182
EBRD grant Bystricany — long-term portion (c) 23 114 694 9026 107
— current portion {c) 206 904 0
US Steel — iong-term portion (d) 3 280 457 3475672
— current portion (d) 199 926 204 638
EU TEN-E - long-term portion (e) 688 363 716 914
— current portion (e} 28 551 28 551
E.On - long-term portion (f) 2251 168 2 358 669
— current portion (f) 118 963 130 425
Slovenské elektrarne, a. s. — long-term portion (g) 2716093 2908 213
— current portion (g) 192 118 192 120
EU TEN-E - long-term porticn (h) 745 670 773 674
— current portion (h) 28 004 28 004
EU TEN-E — long-term portion (i) 1822405 1 896 553
—current portion (i) 67 148 67 148
EU TEN-E - long-term portion (j) 2070655 2 137 248
—current portion {j) 66 593 66 589
Zapadoslovenskd distribuéna — long-term portion (k) 2706102 2873035

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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— current portion (k) 166 933 166 934
Vychodosiovenska distribuéha — long-term portion (I} 3944 182 4117 273
— current portion (1) 175433 177 780
INEA Velky Meder — long-term portion {m) 360 756 480 565
— current portion {m) 0 0
INEA Rimavska Sobota — long-term pertion (n) 633 575 643 750
— current portion {n) 0 0
Zapadoslovenska distribuéna — Pod. Biskupice— long-term porticn (o) 3322 649 2 333487
- current portion (o) 89 807 89715
Zapadoslovenska distribuéna - Senica— long-term portion (p) 3 500 000 3 500 000
— cuirent portion (p) 0 0
Fortischem — long-term portion (q) 3074123 2288 000
— cuirent portion {q) 0 0
Others — long-term portion (o} 5086 672 11 067 100
— current portion (o) 10 020 963 12 726 148
Total 114 215 378 110 438 762

a)

On 10 December 2003, the Company concluded a grant contract with the European Bank for
Reconstruction and Development (EBRD), under which the EBRD undertock to provide a grant of EUR
24 miliion for IPR “Krizovany 400 kV, Reconstruction— Structure 2, Part 2 and Structure 3". The contract
became effective on 4 August 2004. The subsidy proceeds were drawn over the period of 2004 —
2010.

The amount of EUR 10 524 625 {31 December 2018: EUR 11 345 159 ) was recognized in deferred
revenue related to the grant.

At he reporting date, the Company has nec executor warranties or other contingent liabilities related to
grant other than expenses connected to the project in accordance with an approved budget and its
structuire.

b)

On 18 December 2007 the Company concluded a grant contract with the European Bank for
Reconstruction and Development (EBRD), under which the EBRD undertook to provide a grant of EUR
43.9 miliion for extension IPR Bo3aca 400 kV, transformer staticn 400/110kV Medzibrod - 2.
construction, transformer station 400/110kV Medzibrod — 3. constructior, power lines 2 x 400kV
LemeSany - KesSice - Moldava - 4. construction. The contract became effective on 4 July 2008.

The amount of EUR 33 004 846 (31 December 2018: EUR 34 639 291) was recognized in deferred
revenue reiated to the subsidy.

At the reporting date, the Company has no executcr warranties or other contingent liabilities related to
grant other than expenses connected to the project in accordance with an approved budget and its
structure.

c)

On 14 December 2010 was concluded a grant agreement between Siovenska elektrizacna a
prenosova sustava, a. s. and the European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBRD), in
which the EBRD agreed to provide a grant of EUR 76 000 thousand. This agreement effected on 17
December 2014. The grant funds will be used to set of buildings Bystritany — transformation 400/110
kV, for expansion substation in Horna Zdaria and Krizovany crossing the 400 kV Krizovany - Bystricany
and 400 kV Oslany - Horna Zdana. Grant funds will be drawn till 2020.

The amount of EUR 23 321 598 {31 December 2018: EUR 9 026 107) was recognized in deferred
revenue related to the subsidy.

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements,
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At the reporting date, the Company has no executor warranties or other contingent liabilities related to
grant other than expenses connected to the project in accordance with an approved budget and its
structure.

d)

Deferred revenues include an amount 3 480 383 (31 December 2018: EUR 3 680 310 ), related to
investment in the substation in Ko3ice, which remains in property of the Company, however, the
company US Steel hewever, the company US Steel paid the half of the substation's acquisition costs.

e}

Amount of EUR 716 914 represents a co-finance provided to the Company from an European
Commission's program EU TEN-E (Trans — European Network ) in the amount of 10% of the value of
transmission iines EK-Moldava — SS KoSice (31 December 2018: EUR 745 465 EUR).

f)

Deferred revenue of EUR 2 370 131 included in deferred revenues is related to construction field 13
in ES Krizovany that was 100 % financed by company E.On Trakovice {31 December 2018: EUR
2 489 094).

g)

Amount of EUR 2 908 211 relates to refinancing of cost of Slovenské elektrérne, a.s. for connecting to
transmission systems EMO 3 and 4 in Vefky Dur (31 December 2018: EUR 3 100 333).

h)
Amount of EUR 773 674 represents co-finance provided tc Cempany from European Commission for
the transmission line 5S KoSice — LemeSany (31 December 2018: EUR 801 678).

i)

Amount of EUR 1 886 553 represents co-finance provided from European Commission for the meshing
V 409 line to the new transformer station 400 / 110kV in electric station Vola (31 December 2018; EUR
1863 701).

i)
Amount of EUR 2 137 248 represents co-finance provided to Company from European Commission
for the transmission line 400 kV Gabgikovo — Velky Dur (31 December 2018: 2 203 837 EUR).

k)
Amount EUR 2 873 035 is related to the refinancing of Zapadoslovenska distribucna a.s. costs for

enlargement the electric station in Stupava by second transformer (31 December 2018: EUR:
3 039 969).

1)

Ameunt EUR 4 119 615 is related to the refinancing of VWchodoslovenska distribuéna a.s. costs for
the construction of devices necessary to connect R 400/110 kV Vofa into efectric fransmission system
(31 December 2018: EUR 4 295 053).

m)

Amount of EUR 360 756 represents the financial contribution from INEA agency intended for design
and engineering work for the project of 2x400 kV line Velky Meder — State Border of the Slovak
Republic — Hungary (31 December 2018: EUR 480 565).

n)

Amount of EUR 633 575 represents the financial contribution from INEA agency intended for design
and engineering work for the project of 2x400 kV line Rimavska Sobota — State Border of the Slovak
Republic — Hungary (31 December 2018; EUR 643 750).

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.



Slovenska elektrizaéna prenosova sistava, a.s.

51
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union
{All arnount are in Euros unless stated otherwise)

o)

The amount of EUR 3 412 456 relates to the refinancing of costs of capital construction within the
Podunajské Biskupice power station incurred by Zapadaoslovenska distribuéna, a. s. (31 December
2018: EUR 2 423 202 ).

P)
The amount of EUR 3 500 000 relates {o the refinancing of costs of capital construction within the

Bystri¢any power station incurred by Zapadoslovenska distribuéna, a. s. (31 December 2018: EUR
3500 000 ).

a)
The amount of EUR 3 074 123 relates to the refinancing of costs of capital construction within the Est

Senica power station incurred by Fortischem, a. s. (31 December 2018: EUR 2 288 000 ).

r

in other deferred income is recognized then amount of EUR 242 104 (31 December 2018: 253 225
EUR), which relates to the joint procedure agreement for connection of company’s En-invest, a. s.
facilitiest to the transmission system SR at the Moldava power station.

As other long-term deferred income the Company is recorded an income in amount of EUR
4 015 560 representing the proceeds of regulated tariffs, which does not belong to the Company in
2018 according to regulatory accounting rules and procedures, but in 2021, when they will be realised
(31 December 2018: EUR : 9 943 091).

As other snort-term deferred income the Company is recorded an income in amouni of EUR
9943 091 representing the proceeds of regulatad tariffs, which does not belong to the Company in
2018 according to regulatory accounting rules and procedures, but in 2020, when they will be realised
(31 December 2018: EUR 12 545 498).

18 Deferred tax

Deferred taxes are calculated on temporary differences under the balance sheet liability method using
a principal tax rate of 21% (31 December 2018: 21%). As at 31 December 2019 tax rate will decrease
by additional 6.5% for temporary differences in fixed assets due to charges for regulated subjects
based on act No. 235/2012 Z.z. (31 December 2018: 6.5%). This levy increased the tax rate for
temporary differences, which will offset by the end of 2020 related to fixed assets, as the value of the
levy is caiculated from profit before tax calculated according to the Slovak Act on Accounting, no taking
into consideration temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitizs are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
asset against current liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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The movements in the deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows:

Accounted to

At 31 {Change) other parts of
December {-) costs/ comprehensive At 31 December
2018 {+) benefits results 2019
Positive revaluation of fixed
assets -25 295 089 2625759 87 674 -22 581 656
Negative revaluation of fixed 0
assels 623 521 -92 169 531 352
Receivables 0 0 0 0
Tangible and intangible assets -43 086 271 -4 740 674 0 -47 826 945
IFRS 16 0 -8 167 18 385 10 218
Financial investment -28 980 0 0 -28 980
Retirement benefit 1982 679 66 360 263 970 2 313 009
Provisions 637 844 -128 634 0 509 210
Other 5992 309 611 621 0 6 603 930
Total -59 173 987 -1 665 904 370 025 -60 459 862
Accounted fo
At 31 (Change) other parts of
Decermnber (-) costs/ comprehensive At 31 December
2017 (+) benefits results 2018
Posilive revaluation of fixed 813208
assels -30 194 285 4 (385 988 -25 295 089
Negative revaluation of fixed 0
assels 728 192 -104 678 823 521
Receivables 0 0 0 0
Tangible and intangible assets -36 330 615 -6 755 656 0 -43 086 271
Financial investment -28 980 0 0 -28 980
Retirement benefit 1711989 119 490 151 200 1982679
Provisions 520 934 116 910 0 637 844
Cther 4923 342 1 068 967 0 5992 308
Total -58 669 416 -1 468 979 864 408 -59 173 987
19 Provisions for liabilities and charges
Pensions and
other long-
term bensfits  Legal claims Others
(a) {b) {c) Total
At 1 January 2019 9441 325 72243 0 9 513 568
Additional provisions 2 266 000 0 0 2 266 000
Provisions used -693 000 0 0 -693 000
Reversals of unused provision 0 -3 482 0 0
At 31 December 2019 11014 325 68 761 0 11 083 086
As at 31 December
Analysis of total provisions 2019 2018
Non - current 11 014 325 9441 325
Current 68 761 72 243
Total 11 083 086 9 513 568
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{a) Pension benefits and other long-term benefits

The following amount have been recognized with respect of the defined benefit pension plan and other
long-term benefits:

{i) Post employment benefits
As at 31 December
2019 2018
Present value of unfunded retirement obligations 10 813 362 9278 362
Unrecognized actuarial gains/{losses) and portion of past service cesis 0 0
10 813 362 9 278 362
Obligation in the Statement of Financiai Position 36
The amount recognized in the Income Statement are as follows:
2019 2018
Current service cost 889 000 733 000
Past service cost G 0
Interest cost 63 000 116 000
Pension (credit) / cost, included in personnel costs 952 000 849 000
Value recognized in Equity are as follows:
2019 2018
Recognized actuarial gains/(losses) 1258 000 709 000
Total change recognized in equity 1258 000 709 900
Movements in the present vaiue of defined benefit cbligation are:
20198 2018
Present vaiue of unfunded retirement obligations at beginning of the year 9278 362 7 997 362
Current service cost 889 000 733 000
Interest cost 63 000 116 000
Benefits paid -675 000 =277 000
Past service cost 0 0
Cancelled 0 0
Actuarial gains/{losses) 1258 000 709 000

Present value of unfunded retirement obligations at the end of the year _10 813 362 9 278 362

{(ii) Other long-term henefits (jubilees and loyalties)
As at 31 December

2019 2018
Present value of unfunded obligations 200 963 162 963
Obligation in the Statement of Financial Position 200 963 162 963
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The amounts recognized in the Income Statement are as follows:
2019 2018
Current service cost 38 000 15 000
Recognized actuarial gains/loss 18 000 0
interest expense 1000 2000
Pension {credit)/cost, inciuded in personnel costs 57 000 17 000
Value recognized in Equity are as follows:
2019 2018
Recognized actuarial gains/(losses) -1000 11 000
Total change recognizad in equity -1.000 11000
Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligation are:
2019 2018
Present value of unfunded retirement obligations at beginning of the year 162 983 154 963
Current service cost 38 000 15 000
Past service cost 18 000 0
interest cost 10C0 2000
Benefits paid -18 000 =20 300
Actuarial gainsflosses -1 000 11 000
Present vaiue of unfunded retirement obligations at the end of the year 200 963 162 963

The principal actuarial assumpticn to determine the pension liability were as follows:

As at 31 December 2019

Percentage of employess, who will terminate their 1,7 —4,7 % p. a., v zavislosti od veku
employment with SEPS prior o retirement (fluctuation rate}

Expected salary increases 5,00-5,10 % p. a.

Discount rate 0,40% p. a; 0,63%p.a..

As at 31 December 2018

Percentage of employees, who will terminate their 1,9 - 4,7 % p. a., v zévislosti od veku
employment with SEPS prior to retirement {fluctuation rate)

Expected salary increases 5,00-6,2% p. a.

Discount rate 1,00% p. a; 1,45%p.a..

(b} Provision for legal claims

A provision is created for those legal claims where it is probable, at the reporting date, that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The Company is involved in a legal cases
regarding tha cost reimbursement for bush cutting in the protection electricity lines zone and
compensation for easements. In the opinion of the Company’s management, after taking appropriate
legal advice, the outcome of these legal claims will not give rise to any significant loss beyond the
amounts provided.

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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20 Revenues

Revenues include the following:

Revenues from electricity transmission and electricity transit:

2019 2018

Accesss to transmission grid 137 922 199 140 537 635
Fee for connection to the iransmission system 954 313 933 834
Covering lossing 14 797 671 10 572 948
System operation 26 550 26 550
System services 144 472 821 157 937 868
Auctions 29 376 183 15 923 391
Deviations and regulation energy 8511 586 10 550 180
CBT mechanism 7 631102 3714 644
Import and export 1225 662 249 934
Profil CT
Shipping 17 134 740 18 103 362
Other regulated revenues (mainly shipping and daily
market) 2 240 758 192 474
Total revenues from eigctricity transmission and
transit 364 293 585 358 742 850
Rental 751 787 761 852
Telecommunications services 153 188 251 768
Other revenues 366 130 25 005
Total other revenues 1271085 1038625
Total revenues 365 564 70 350781475

The revenue from the Company’s core activities mainly resuits from the regulatory framework and the
URSO decisions that issued by this institution for the relevant year.

Revenues from rental comprise income from the rental of non-residential premises, rental of electric
masts for various types of transmitters and antennas and rental of power lines. Revenues for
telecommunications services include the rental of fiber optic and services of the management
information system.

Since 11 September 2012 the Company is acting as a shipping agent in connecting Czech, Siovak
and Hungarian electricity market. On 19 November 2014 was operated trilateral Market Coupling
between the Czech Republic, the Slovak Republic and Hungary extended by Romania to the
quadrilateral Market Coupling (ie. 4MMC), which integrates related daily electricity markets through
an implicit allocation of cross-border capacity between the Czech, Slovak, Hungarian and Romanian
markets. The Company recognizes the revenues from these activities under line Sales from
merchandise respectively Costs for merchandise sold. In 2019 the Company realized transactions in
total amount of EUR 365 750 967 and related costs were EUR 350 155 987 EUR (31 December 2018:
transactions in amount of EUR 488 176 192 and related costs were in the amount of EUR
462 065 687). According to IFRS 15, costs of implicit auctions of EUR 22 824 397 and costs of
collection for the benefit of a third party amounting to EUR 7 971 526 , as such collection does not
form a part of the transaction price according to IFRS 15, were deducted from these items as at
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31 December 2019. Revenues related to the use of the OT profile amounting to EUR 32 335 683 are
also included in shipping; as at 31 December 2019 they are reported on a separate line. (As at
31 December 2018, costs associated with the implicit auctions amounting to EUR 13 055 252, as well
as costs of collection for the benefit of a third party in the amount of EUR 6 047 620 were included in
service costs, revenues relaied to the use of the OT profile in the amount of EUR 11 095 729 EUR).

Together with the operator of the Czech transmission network, the Company has introduced a system
to avoid simultaneous supplies of balancing energy in opposite directions using cross-border
connections (hereinafter the GCC system). Since 2013, the operator of the Hungarian transmission
system has also participated in the system. The respective revenues and costs result from the volume
of the balancing energy acquired within the GCC system and fixed prices for this balancing energy
determined by a resolution adopted by the Office. The Company reports revenues from these activities
as part of the “sale of goods™ and the “costs of goods sold”. The net result is reported in the “other
regulated revenues” line (as of 31 December 2018, the line “consumpticn of material and energy” was
used). During 20189, transactions totalling to EUR 2 796 022 were carried out. Related costs amounted
to EUR 1 385 382 (31 December 2018: transactions totalled to EUR 1 840 154 and the cosis
amounted to EUR 1 902 145).

21 Consumed materials and services

Consumed maiterials and services included the following:

2019 2018
Material and energy consumption 16 515 430 14 143 072
Repair and maintenance 1 756 679 8121090
Travel expenses 394 358 541 161
Representation expenses 567 327 483 854
Rental 3556 277 546 350
Communication services 220 734 223138
Substations service 2298 544 2250977
Protection and maintenance of area 1873 296 908 505
Revisions, controls, security services 598 900 1 167 969
Technical advisory, technical support 198 007 32812
Cleaning 318 384 291 258
Biological recultivations 237 932 582 430
Geodetic services 145 853 9 560
Experts examinations, analysis, experis opinions, certifications 3 112 800 3 022 136
information technology services, advertisement 9627 232 8 680 215
Expenses for ancillary services 133 766 690 151 006 389
Expenses for deviations 5277 582 5594 614
Expenses for auctions 258 715 217 090
Expenses for CBT/ITC 1580 46 029
Bounded expenses 0 400 000
Securing of system services from 5SE, a. s. 0 418 655
Audit of Financial Statements provided by auditor 40 000 40 000
Advisorory services 470180 387 308
Tax advisory 35160 40 425
Demolitions 1091 146 3 064 606
Operating services TSCNET Services GmbH 1 080 200 ¢
Other 1056 101 851 346
Total 190 298 117 203 071 790

The Company is a natural monopoly and its activities are regulated by the Regulatory Office for Network
Industries (hereinafter referred to as the “Office”). Resolutions of the Office determine tariffs, prices and
allowed costs of the Cempany. To determine these values, the Office applies procedures and formulas
described in the Office decrees following the principles set out by the Regulation Board in its regulation
policy for the regulation period in question.
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The Company’s costs are created mainly from regulated costs for purchase of ancillary needed fo
provide system services, system operation costs, purchase of electricity for loss coverage and own
consumption, costs for international transmission and auctions and other costs needed for
transmission system operation and operation of the Company.

22 Personnel costs

2019 2018
Wages and salaries 20 847 940 19 543 154
Other personnel costs 2291700 2168815
Pension cosis — defined contribution plans 7 648 204 7 325 381
Current service costs 927 000 748 000
Past service cost 18 GO0 0
Interest costs on pensicn and similar empioyee's benefits 64 000 118 000
Totai 31 796 844 29 903 350
23 Other operating expenses
2018 2018
Insurance costs 2201716 2158221
Provision for impairment 50 532 5000
Loss from sale of fixed assets 0 0
Taxes and other fees 182 005 185 892
Gifts 417 000 414 200
Other operating expense 507 491 523 980
Total 3 358 744 3 288 293
24 Other operating income
2019 2018
Gain from sale of material 18 019 16 751
Profit from sold fixed assets 277 580 176 810
Release of deferred revenues from a grant from EBRD 2 541 502 2477973
Contractuai penalties 1399 286 1310127
insurance 85 483 85 375
Excess material 156 649 350
Other operating income 289 067 268 365
Total 4 767 568 4 335 751
25 Finance expense, net
2013 2018
Interest income 90 428 115113
Interest expense from borrowings -530 412 -657 423
interest expense related to IFRS 16 -17 861 0
Foreign Exchange gains 5 4098
Foreign Exchange losses -5135 -2 629
Dividends 75795 56 729
Other financial expense -24 344 -7 965
-411 472 -492 077

Net finance expense
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26 [ncome tax expense

Reconciliation from the theoretical to the reported income tax charge is presented in the following
table:

Year ended 31 December

2019 2018

Profit before tax 94 976 273 72 178 452
Theoretical income tax related to current period at 21% (2018;
21%) 18 945 017 15 157 475
- Other income not subject 1o tax {permanent) -1 474 669 -1 307 239
- Non-deductible expenses (permanent) 673 841 570 658
-Increase of tax due to charges for regulated subjects 8526 727 7 450 828
-Deferred tax from temporary differences to which no deferred
tax has been accounted historically 0 o
-Additional income tax 0 o
Changes in deferred taxes to 1 January due to change in tax
rate 0 -828

25 670 916 21 870 894
Income tax expense for the period
The tax charge for the period comprises:
- Deferrad tax charge — expensef{incoms) {Note 18) 1665 804 1 468 979
Deferred tax total 1 665 504 1468 979
-Special levy for regulated subjects 6 526 727 7 450 828
-Additional income tax
- Current income tax expense 17 478 285 12 951 087
income !ax toial 24 005 012 20 401 915
Total income tax expense for the period 25 670 916 21 B70 894
Effective tax rate 27,03% 30,30%

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences using the
basic tax rate of 21 % (31 December 2018: 21 %). This tax rate has been increased as at 31 December
2019 for additional 6.5 % for temporary differences in fixed assets because of special levy for regulated
industry paid according to Act Nr. 235/2012 Coll. (31 December 2018: 6.5 %). This levy increased the
tax rate for temporary differences, which will offset by the end of 2020 related to fixed assets only, as
the value of the levy is calculated from profit before tax calculated according to the Slovak Act on
Accounting, not taking into consideration temporary differences.

27 Contingencies
{a) Taxation

Many areas of Slovak tax law (such as transfer-pricing regulations) have not been sufficiently tested
in practice, so there is some uncertainty as how the tax authorities would apply them. The extent of
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this uncertainty cannot be quantified. It will be reduced only if legal precedents or official interpretations
are available. The Company's management is not aware of any circumstances that may give rise to
future material expense in this respect.

{b) Regulation and liberalization in energy industry
Regulatory framework for the electricity market in the Slovak Republic

Based on the current legislation, the electricity market in the Slovak Republic is liberalized and allows
free selection of electricity supplier for all customers.

Activities of the Company are subject to regulation by URSO.
28 Commitments
{a) Future investment commitments

The Company has contractual obligations under the contracts for the purchase of non-current assets
entered into before 31 December 2019, the performance of which is scheduled only after 31 December
2019. The total obligation under the contracts amount to EUR 82 857 537 (2018; EUR 50 192 651).
The capital expenditure is related primarily to the changeover to the new type of substations, with the
implementation of the following projects: 2x400 kV line from Rimavska Scbota station to Slovak-
Hungarian border, 2x400 kV line from Velky Meder to Slovak-Hungarian border, with 400/110 kV
transformation (Bystritany), re-insulation and remote control, with RIS SED innovation and engingering
and project activities for substations and lines.

The Company has approved a capital expenditure budget for 2020 in the amount of EUR 108 783 873
(2019 capex budget: EUR 83 328 660). Capital expenditure is related primarily to the 2x400 kV line
from Krizovany to Bystri€any, with a group of constructions Gabéikovo — Verky Dur — Rimavska Sobota
— Hungarian border with a conductor exchange at Levice station, Rz 220 kV Suéany recovery, re-
insulation, remote control in electricity stations and ICT systems.

It is expected that both internal and external funds will be used to finance these capital expenditures.

(b) Future operating lease commitments — Company as lessee

Using the database of contracts, the Company selected contracts where it has the role of a lessee.
For these contracts, it assessed, whether they are compliant with the IFRS 16 conditions and therefore
whether are to be reported based on that standard. Reports, for which the Company applied the
optional derogation, are listed below. The Company reports neither the right of use of asset nor the
liability from lease for all types of lease contracts with the lease period up to 12 months. Costs related
to these leases are reported in financial accounts as operating costs evenly over lease periods.

The Company has also applied an optional derogation and reports neither the right of use of asset nor
the liability from lease in relation to lease contracts where the value of the leased asset is clearly lower
than EUR 5 000. When determining the estimated value of an asset, the Company assumes that it is
a new asset. If the asset value cannot be determined reliably, the optional derogation shall not be
applied.
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The Company has the following future minimum lease instalments in relation to the above operating
lease contracts:

31 December 31 December
2019 2018

Due within 1 year 257 052 390 455
Due in 2 {o 5 years(inclusive) 171 384 628 927
Due after 5 years 173 4789
Total 428 609 1024171

The Company has also entered into an operating lease for an unlimited period of time with a possibility
of termination with a 3-month termination period. The annual lease payments amount to EUR 10 129
(31 December 2018: EUR 132 852}. The main ifemns include the lease of telecommunications routes.

¢} Future operating lease commitments — Company as lessor

The Company leases out mainly transformation and optic fibre cables.

The following minimum lease instaiments relate to the operating lease contracts:

31 December 31 December
2019 2018

Due within 1 year 254 464 256 521
Due in 2 to 5 years {inclusive) 1017 854 1026 084
Due after 5 years 1781245 2052 168
Total 3053 563 3334773

The Company has alsc entered into an operating lease for an unlimited period of time for which the
annual lease payments amount to EUR 396 418 (31 December 2018: EUR 381 472).

The Company leases 2x110kV power lines ESt Lemes$any - ES S5 Kosice from supporting point in
Bukovec to supporting point in LemeSany in length of 18,678 km. Lease expires in 50 years, rent is
calculated every year according to capital, invesiment and operating costs. Annual rent for 2019 as at
31 December 2019 amounts to EUR 289 286 (31 December 2018 for year 2019: EUR 290 560 EUR).
The basic component of the rent will be paid to iessor for the time of 20 years and operating component
of the rent will be paid to lessor for the time of 50 years. The minimal lease instalments include the
basic component of the rent in amount of EUR 254 464 annually (31 December 2018: EUR 256 521).

29 Cash generated from operations

Note 2018 2018
Profit before income tax 94 976 273 72 178 452
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 5 49 087 419 54 276 416
Amortization 6 1571903 1976 320
impairment charge for non-current assets 5 0 -4 399
Changes in provisions for receivables 11 50 532 4730
{Gain) / loss on disposal of assets 24 -277 560 -176 810
Dividend income -75 795 -56 729
interest income/expense, net 25 457 845 542 310
Net movements in provisions 19 1569 518 1293 000
Changes in working capital:
Inventories (gross) -1 706 453 -17 478
Trade and other receivables 11 865 133 -19 0568 796
Trade and other payables, deferred revenues -2 047 186 40 552 368
Cash generated from operations 155 471 629 151 516 384
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In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of assets are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

Note 2019 2018
Net book value 212 220 300 821
Profit/{loss) from sale of tangible fixed assets 24 277 560 176 810
Proceeds from disposal of tangible fixed assets 489 780 477 631

30 Related party transactions

Parties related to the Company include its sole sharehoider, the subsidiary OKTE, a.s., the company
Joint Allecation Office, S. A. and TSCNET Services, GmbH and key management perscnnel of the
Company or the shareholder.

The National Property Fund (FNM), an entity fully owned by the Slovak Republic as the sole
shareholder of the Company till 1 October 2012. Since 2 Cctocber 2612 the sole shareholder is the
Ministry of Finance of Slovak Republic.

Transactions with entities that are owned or controlled directly or indirectly by the State are realized
in accordance with the prevalling regulatory principles.

Ministry of Economy of Slovak Republic, is the 51 % shareholder of Zapadosiovenska energetika,
a. §., Vychodosiovenska energetika Holding, a. s. and Stredoslovenska energstika, a. s..

Zapadoslovenska distribuéna, a.s., Zapadoslovenska energetika — Energia, a. s., ZSE Elektrarne,
s. 1. 0., Vychodoslovenska energetika, a. s., Vychodoslovenska distribuéna, a. s. and Stredoslovenska
distribuéna, a. s. are 100% subsidiaries of these companies.

As at 31 December 2019, the outstanding balances with the subsidiary were as follows:

Gross amount Value adjustment
of trade Other fo trade Trade and
receivables receivables receivables other payables
OKTE, a. s. 12 037 829 0 0 -3162 210

As at 31 December 2019, the outstanding halances with joint venture were as follows:

Gross amount Value adjustment
of trade Other to trade Trade and
receivables receivables receivables other payables
Joint Allocation Office, S. A.
Luxemburg 27 416 0 0 -1913023

As at 31 December 2019, the outstanding balances with the state-controlled entities and government
bodies (other related parties) were as follows:

Value

adjustment to
Gross amount of Other {rade Trade and
trade receivables receivables receivables other payables
Slovenske elektrarne, a.s. 178 483 14 786 0 -16 365 185
ZSE Elekirarne, s.r.o 22 270 0 0 -205 674
Zapadoslovenska distribuéna, a .s. 2766 135 0 0 -228 708
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Value
adjustment to
Gross amount of Other trade Trade and
trade receivables receivables receivables other payables
Zapadoslovenska energetika —
Energia, a.s. 0 0 0 -52 304
Vychodoslovenska distribucna, a. s. 1153947 G 0 -28 350
Stredoslovenska energetika, a.s. 0 0 0 -55
Stredoslovenska distribuéna, a.s. 1 835 646 ¢] 0 -61 788
Teplarei Kosice, a. s. 5 364 0 0 -386 313
Zilinska teplarensk4, a. s. 585 0 0 -95 835
Martinska teplarenska, a. s. 482 C 0 -240 396
Zvolenska teplarenska, a. s. 1728 #] 0 -263 419
Vodohospodarska vystavba, a. s. 25582 G 0 -845 123
Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a. s. 0 o 0 -1 230
As at 31 December 2018, the cutstanding balances with the subsidiary were as follows:
Gross amount Value adjustment
of trade Other to trade Trade and
raceivables receivables receivables other payables
OKTE, a. s. 14 552 550 0 0 -17 774 474
As at 31 Dacember 2018, the outstanding balances with joint venture were as follows:
Gross amount Value adjustment
of trade Other to trade Trade and
receivables receivables receivables other payables
Joint Allocation Office, S. A.
Luxemburg 107 654 0 0 -3 028 443

As at 31 December 2018, the outstanding balances with the state-controlled entities and government

bodies (other related parties) were as foliows:

Value

Gross amount adjustment to Trade and

of trade Other trade other

receivables receivables receivables payables

Slovenské elekirame, a. s. 80978 5518 0 -14645343
ZSE Elektrame, s.r.o. ‘ 743 0 0 -172 099
Zépadoslovenska distribuéng, a .s. 3053 252 0 0 -142 293

Zapadoslovenska energetika —
Energia, a. s. 0 0 0 0
Vychodoslovenska energetika

Holding, a. s. 0 0 0 0
Vychodosiovenska distribuéng, a. s. 1283 225 0 0 -44 295
Vychodoslovenska energetika, a. s. 59 0 0 0
Stredoslovenska energetika, a. s. 0 0 0 -1 367 509
Stredoslovenska distributna, a. s. 1830584 0 0 -35 864
Teplaref Kosice, a. s. 12 831 0 0 -359 303
Zilinska teplarenska, a. s. 156 0 0 -146 594
Martinska teplarenska, a. s. 2523 0 0 -285 144
Zvolenska teplarenska, a. s. 1159 0 0 -357 837
Slovenské elektrarne Predaij, s. r. 0. V] 4] 0 0
Vodohospodarska vystavba, a. s. 668 0 0] -857 879
Brafislavska teplarenska, a. s. 0 0 0 D
Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a. s. 0 0 0 -2 002
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The inccma and expense items with the subsidiary, joint venture, state-controlled entities and
government bodies for the year ended 31 December 2019 were as follows:

Sale of Purchase of

services services

OKTE, a. s. 185 018 405 -13 024 888
Joint Allocation Office, S. A. 6312473 -285 020
TSCNET Services, GmbH 0 -1 113 866
Slovenské elektrarne, a.s. 6 560 704 =71 481 437
Zapadosiovenska distribuéng, a. s. 59 702 155 -420 301
Zapadoslovenské energetika — Energia, a. s. 0 -411 072
ZSE Elekirame, s. 1. 0. 1140 370 -829 695
Vychodoslovenska distribucna, a. s. 26 166 539 -235 502
Stredoslovenska energetika, a. s. 0 -4 118
Stredoslovenska distribuénag, a. s. 37 642 571 -364 484
Teplaren Kodice, a. s. 0 -2 961 079
Zilinska teplarenska, a. s. 0 -353 052
Martinska teplarenska, a. s. 0 -851 224
Zvolenska teplarenska, a. s. 0 -1 140 221
Vychodoslovenska energetika, a. s. 0 -703
Vodohospodarska vystavba, a. s. 1399 869 -5 144 445
Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a. s. ¢ -31 464

The income and expensa items with the subsidiary, joint venture, state-contrelled entities and
government bodies for tha year ended 31 December 2018 were as follows:

Sale of Purchase of

sarvices services
OKTE, a. s. 71 894 027 -13 937 680
Joint Allocation Office, 8. A. Q843 184 -196 565
TSCNET Services, GmbH 0 -748 282
Slovenské elektrame, a.s. 6 746 657 -82 243 989
Zapadoslovenska energetika, a. s. 0 0
Zapadoslovenska distribugna, a. s. 60 219 1186 -453 344
Zapadoslovenska energetika — Energla, a. s. 0 0
ZSE Elektrarne, s. 1. 0. 330 829 -837 272
Vychodoslovenska energetika Holding, a. s. 0 0
Vychodosiovenska distribuéna, a. s. 26 926 602 -233 038
Stredoslovenska energetika, a. s. 0 -4 319 448
Stredoslovenska distribu¢éna, a. s. 35693 089 776 973
Teplaref Kodice, a. s. o -3 348 700
Zilinska teplarenska, a. s. 0 -433 571
Martinska teplarenska, a. s. 0 -961 114
Zvolenska teplarensks, a. s. 0 -1 471780
Vychodoslovenska energetika, a. s. 0 -674
Slovenské elektrare Predaj, s. r. 0. 0 0
Vodohospodarska vystavba, a. s. 1 487 696 -4 677 706
Bratislavska teplarenska, a. s. 0 0
Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a. s. 0 -26 767

Key management personnel compensation

Salaries and bonuses paid to the Company’'s management, directors and other members of top
management for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, are as follows:

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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64
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union
(All amount are in Euros unless stated otherwise}

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
Salaries and short term employee benefits 2344275 2250 693
Total 2 344 275 2 250 693

31 Events after the reporting period

No events with a material impact on the true and fair presentation of facts subject to the accounting
occurred after 31 December 2019.

The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union were prepared and
authorized for issue on 13 February 2020.

Slovenska elektrizaéna
nrenosova slstava, a.s.
Miynské nivy 59/A
824 84 Bratislava 26
-02-

Ing. Martin Malanik
Member of the Board of Directors

Ing. Jan Orac
Pearson responsible for preparation of the Financial
Statements

Ing. RuZena Kollarova
Person responsible for bookkeeping

The notes 6 to 64 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.



